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manufactures and trades garment products for internationally
renowned brand names and engages in securities investment.
The Group has production facilities in Mainland China.

Headquartered in Hong Kong, Carry Wealth Holdings Limited has
been listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong since 2000.

The Chinese name of the Company means “enduring prosperity”.
The Group is committed to maximizing the return of its
shareholders for their ongoing support.
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Revenue &

Loss attributable to equity holders RARIEZREAA

of the Company MBS
Total assets BEE
Total liabilities BaB
Total equity B

2014
—F-bO#
HK$'000
FERT

153,176

(14,724)

2014
—F-mE
HK$’000
FET

357,103
(43,007)

314,096

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-_A=t+-HLEE
2013 2012 2011
T ZT--f ZT——F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT TR TET

145,838 122,737 601,843

(30216) (71,502  (47.401)

As at 31 December
R+-ZA=t+-H
2013 2012 2011
2= —T-——_f “T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET

233,120 222,446 328,610
(39,688) (34,120) (84,786)

193,432 188,326 243,824

2010
“Z2-%F
HK$'000
FET

734,931

(48,829)

2010
—E-EF
HK$'000
TET

546,949
(305,211)

241,738



Financial Highlights B7 5 i &
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Operating results
Revenue
Gross profit

Loss attributable to equity holders
of the Company

Financial position at year end
Properties, plant and equipment
Cash and cash equivalents
Net current assets
Total assets
Total liabilities

Capital and reserves attributable to the
Company’s equity holders

Per share information

Basic and diluted loss per share
(Hong Kong cents) (Restated)

Capital and reserves attributable to the
Company’s equity holders per share (Hong
Kong cents)

Ratio analysis
Profitability
Gross profit margin
Net loss margin
Return on the Company’s equity holders

Liquidity
Current ratio
Gearing ratio®

Operating efficiency
Inventory turnover period (days)
Trade receivable turnover (days)
Trade payable turnover (days)
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* As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Group did not have bank

borrowings.

2014
—¥F-0%
HK$'000
FET

153,176
33,408

(14,724)

58,610
110,625
248,021
357,103

43,007

314,096

(1.90)

39.0

21.8%
(9.6%)
(4.7%)

8.1
N/ARER

75
55
47

2013
“E-=F
HK$'000
AL

145,838
14,671

(30,216)

59,078
101,408
124,244
233,120

39,688

193,432

(5.56)

36.1

10.1%
(20.7%)
(15.6%)

4.7
N/A 1 &

65
4
40

Changes
BILEE

5.0%
127.7%

-51.3%

-0.8%
9.1%
99.6%
53.2%
8.4%

62.4%

-65.8%

8.0%

1.7%
1.1%
10.9%

72.3%
N/A 1 &

15.4%
34.1%
17.5%
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On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the
Company, | am pleased to present to our shareholders the
annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2014.

In 2014, growth in major economies had taken increasingly
divergent courses. Growth in the US rebounded after a
contraction in the first quarter, and unemployment declined
further while inflationary pressure stayed more muted.
However, consumer confidence remained low.

In the Euro Zone, economic indicators reflected neither a
strong nor a sustainable recovery, largely on account of
weak investment while expectations of inflation continued
to decline. With all of the controversy and uncertainty
surrounding Greece, it was easy to overlook the growing signs
of economic recovery in Europe. The European Central Bank
opted to embark on a policy of quantitative easing through
purchases of government bonds in an effort to stimulate the
economy.

Mainland China posted its slowest economic growth in
24 years in 2014, with a cooling property market, slowing
investment and underwhelming exports weighing further on
domestic demand. To stoke growth and avoid a hard landing,
in early 2014, the Peoples’ Bank of China, Mainland China’s
central bank, had reduced the amount of cash that banks
were required to hold as reserve for the first time in more than
two years followed by an unexpected cut in interest rates in
November 2014.

Against such a lackluster backdrop, the Group’s garment
manufacturing and trading business recorded a decrease of
7.5% in revenue to HK$135.0 million for the year ended 31
December 2014. Despite the Group managing to increase
its gross margin by 1.2%, the upsurge in labour and other
production costs plus price pressure from customers whittled
away the Group’s profitability.

Amidst the slow recovery of the global economy, we will
continue facing fierce competition that restrains any upward
adjustments in selling prices. To cope with the challenge, the
Group will focus on enhancing its operational effectiveness
and production efficiency while adopting cost control
measures.
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To meet with the persistent challenges pressing on our
traditional garment business, the Group had determined to
diversify into the securities investment business since late
2013. Securities trading business offers both short-term
and long-term investment opportunities and may provide
ongoing financial returns through a low and controlled capital
commitment at a risk level acceptable to the Group. Towards
this end, the Board has set up an investment committee to
oversee the investment activities of the Group in ensuring
investment policies and risk control guidelines have been
properly formulated and implemented.

The Group completed a rights issue in February 2014 and
raised net proceeds of HK$131.9 milion in fuelling the
securities investment operation.

In 2014, the Hang Seng Index rose only slightly by 1.3%
over the year amid concerns about the US Federal Reserve’s
withdrawal of stimulus policies and economic uncertainties
in emerging markets. Worries over Mainland China’s slow
economic growth intensified, also weighing down the market.
Nevertheless the index’s performance had been aided by
the rollout of Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect, whereby
investors in Mainland China can buy into a pool of Hong
Kong-listed shares. Market sentiment was lifted towards the
end of the year as the US and Mainland China markets rallied.

Thanks to the concerted efforts of the securities investment
team, | am pleased to report that as at 31 December 2014,
the Group invested in a portfolio of Hong Kong-listed equities
with a fair value of HK$113.7 million and achieved a segment
profit of HK$11.7 million for the year ended 31 December
2014.

Looking ahead, we expect the global market to be rather
volatile as substantial divergencies in terms of central banks’
monetary policies will have significant implications for financial
and equity markets and consequently our positioning and
investment strategy.
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The Group acknowledges the importance of corporate
governance as one of the key elements in enhancing
shareholder value. The Group is dedicated to improving
its corporate governance policies in compliance with
regulatory requirements and in accordance with internationally
recommended practices. To achieve this aim, the Company
has formed specific committees to provide assistance, advice
and recommendation to the Board so as to ensure protection
of the Group and the interests of the Company’s shareholders
as a whole.

I would like to convey my heartfelt gratitude and appreciation
to my fellow directors and all of our staff for their diligence,
dedication and enthusiasm in helping the Group to meet and
overcome the challenges we have encountered. | would also
like to thank all of our customers, suppliers, business partners
and shareholders for their full confidence, unfailing trust and
steadfast support for the Group over the years.

Li Haifeng
Chairman

25 March 2015
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For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group’s revenues
amounted to HK$153.2 million (2013: HK$145.8 million) while
gross profit was HK$33.4 million (2013: HK$14.7 million).
Loss attributable to equity holders was HK$14.7 million (2013:
HK$30.2 million). The basic and diluted loss per share were
both 1.90 HK cents (2013: both were 5.56 HK cents).

In the year under review, the US economic figures reflected a
smooth recovery as unemployment continued to decline and
household spending rose. Although US consumer sentiment
was gradually restored, customers were still conservative
about placing large quantity garment orders. While in the
Euro zone, the economy was weakening. Its biggest member,
Germany, with its strongest economy, also showed signs of
a slowdown. In Mainland China, the GDP for 2014 decreased
to 7.4% which was lower than the government target of 7.5%.
Economic data indicated that Mainland China’s manufacturing
activity was further contracting. Amidst this unfavourable
market environment, the Group’s revenue from the garment
manufacturing and trading business decreased by 7.5%
to HK$135.0 million (2013: HK$145.8 million). Nonetheless,
the Group managed to improve the gross margin by 1.2%
to 11.3% (2013: 10.1%) because of cost control measures
and enhanced efficiency, and the gross profit amounted
to HK$15.2 million (2013: HK$14.7 million). As for the new
securities investment business, the Group recorded a revenue
and gross profit of HK$18.2 million (2013: Nil).

The selling expenses to revenue ratio was 2.3% (2013: 2.4%).
As a result of the establishment of the securities investment
business, administrative expenses increased by 3.7% to
HK$44.6 million (2013: HK$43.0 million).

a) Garment manufacturing and trading segment

In the year under review, the Group’s factory in Heshan,
Mainland China accounted for the entire garment
production.
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b)

12

In the US, we saw the continuation of the economic
recovery along with greater household spending and
customers’ confidence has also gradually recovered. For
the year under review, revenue from the US customers
increased by 6.4% to HK$50.8 million (2013: HK$47.7
million) and accounted for 37.6% (2013: 32.7%) of the
segment revenue.

In Mainland China, economic growth continued to slow
down and intense competition acted as a constraint
on any upward adjustments to selling prices. Revenue
derived from the Mainland China customers decreased
by 12.6% to HK$56.2 million (2013: HK$64.3 million)
which accounted for 41.7% (2013: 44.1%) of the segment
revenue. Revenue from the European customers also
declined by 30.1% to HK$14.7 milion (2013: HK$21.1
million) and accounted for 10.9% (2013: 14.4%) of the
segment revenue.

All in all, revenue from the garment manufacturing and
trading segment decreased by 7.5% to HK$135.0 million
(2013: HK$145.8 million) and recorded a loss of HK$9.7
million (2013: HK$9.7 million).

Securities investment segment

On 20 November 2013, the Company announced a rights
issue on the basis of one rights share for every two
shares held at the record date at the subscription price
of HK$0.50 per rights share. On 13 February 2014, the
Group completed the rights issue of 267,704,000 ordinary
shares and raised net proceeds of HK$131.9 million. The
Group had fully applied the net proceeds to build up its
securities investment portfolio and as at 31 December
2014, the Group invested in a portfolio of Hong Kong-
listed equities with a fair value of HK$113.7 million (31
December 2013: Nil).
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The Hang Seng Index rose 1.3% over the year and closed
at 23,605 points on 31 December 2014 (31 December
2013: 23,306 points). During the year under review,
the Hang Seng Index at one point hit a six-year high
exceeding 25,000 points, tracking the rally in the Mainland
China stock markets. The Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock
Connect was also launched in November 2014. Despite
strong rallies in the US and Mainland China stock markets,
concerns over the US Federal Reserve’'s tapering of
quantitative easing and an uncertain outlook for Mainland
China’'s economy weighed on the Hong Kong stock
market. For the year under review, the Group’s securities
investment recorded a revenue of HK$18.2 million (2013:
Nil) and the profit from this segment was HK$11.7 million
(2013: loss of HK$0.2 million).

Adhering to a conservative financial management
methodology, the Group continued to maintain a healthy
financial position. On 13 February 2014, the Group completed
a rights issue of 267,704,000 ordinary shares with net
proceeds of HK$131.9 million. As at 31 December 2014, the
Group’s cash and bank deposits totalled HK$118.6 million
(31 December 2013: HK$109.2 million). Working capital
represented by net current assets increased by 99.6% and
amounted to HK$248.0 million (31 December 2013: HK$124.2
million). The Group’s current ratio was 8.1 (31 December
2013: 4.7).

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Group had no bank
borrowings.

For the year under review, the Group incurred a total capital
expenditure of HK$1.1 milion (2013: HK$1.3 million), which
was mainly for additions to equipment and motor vehicles.
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The Group’s sales are principally transacted in US dollars
and Renminbi. With a factory located in Mainland China and
offices in Hong Kong and Mainland China, operating expenses
of the Group are primarily denominated in Hong Kong
dollars and Renminbi with some expenses in US dollars. The
Group is mainly exposed to US dollar risk arising from sales
transactions of its garments. As the US dollars is pegged to
the Hong Kong dollars, exposure to foreign exchange risk is
minimal.

The Group will closely monitor fluctuations of the US dollar
and, if necessary, will enter into forward exchange contracts
to reduce exchange fluctuation risks.

Consistent with prevailing industry practice, the Group’s
business was transacted on an open account basis with its
long-standing customers. The credit ratings of customers are
constantly reviewed and their respective credit limits adjusted,
as and when necessary.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had no charges on
assets.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had no contingent
liabilities.
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The Group provides a harmonious and professional working
environment to employees whose commitment and expertise
are critical to the long-term success of its business. It
offers employees rewarding careers and provides them
with a variety of training programmes aimed at enhancing
their professionalism. The Group remunerates employees
according to prevailing market practices, individual experience
and performance. To attract and retain high calibre
employees, the Group also offers discretionary bonuses and
share options to staff members based on performance of the
individual as well as the Group.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had a total of 957 (31
December 2013: 989) full-time employees in Mainland China
and Hong Kong.

Looking ahead, the progress towards global economy
recovery is still erratic. The global growth momentum depends
on whether appropriate accommodative monetary policies
are formulated and implemented in line with the respective
economic development of different regions.

Through continuing massive quantitative easing, the US
sustained smooth growth during 2014. Despite the projected
gradual rise in interest rates and the US dollar appreciation
due to massive economic stimuli as the European Central
Bank embarks on its own quantitative easing programme,
US economic growth is expected to continue largely due to
more robust private domestic demand. The significant drop
in oil prices is also helping by boosting purchasing power
and improving consumer sentiment. The domestic demand
is also supported by a more moderate fiscal adjustment and
continued support from an accommodative monetary policy
stance.

As for the Euro zone, most countries have been mired in low
growth with low inflation for a prolonged period. The debt
default and possible Euro exit risk of Greece have cast doubt
on the unity of the Euro zone and cohesion of its policies.
In response, the European Central Bank has announced a
massive quantitative easing programme. While it may stop
the situation from further deterioration, the road to economic
recovery remains long and rocky.
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Meanwhile in Mainland China, the economy is slowing down
after decades of rapid growth. The country’s GDP growth
in 2014 was 7.4%, its lowest rate since 1990. While slower
growth is essential to provide a stable platform for structural
reforms, the central government has intensified its stimulus
efforts with a raft of easing measures to avert a sharper
slowdown. These include further reduction of bank reserve
requirements and interest rates by People’s Bank of China
in 2015 to maintain the growth prospects of the nation’s
economy. China’s economic outlook in 2015 will be of modest
growth.

In 2015, the markets for the Group’s garment manufacturing
and trading business are expected to be both challenging and
demanding. To tackle the difficulty, the Group will continue
imposing stringent cost control measures and enhancing
productivity.

As for the securities investment business, there are several
major risks affecting the Hong Kong stock market. These
include valuation concerns in the US and Mainland China
stock markets, uncertainties over US interest rate hikes,
lingering macroeconomic risks and pressures on regional
currencies. The Group expects the volatile environment to
continue both globally and locally due to divergencies in
the growth in major economies and the policies of central
banks. Therefore, maintaining a focus on fundamentals-driven
investment, despite the noise and fluctuations, will be the key,
along with prudent diversification and incisive analysis. The
Group is cautiously optimistic about the performance of the
stock market in Hong Kong during 2015, after the market was
a laggard during 2014.

As always, the Group pledges to seek every opportunity and

will strive to achieve long-term sustainable growth to maximise
returns to its shareholders.
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The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) is
committed to maintaining and ensuring high standards of
corporate governance as good corporate governance can
safeguard the interests of all shareholders and enhance
corporate value. The Company continuously reviews and
improves the corporate governance practices and standards
of the Group from time to time to ensure that business
activities and decision making processes are regulated in a
proper manner.

The Company has complied with all the code provisions
set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”)
contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) throughout the
year ended 31 December 2014.

The Board is led by the Chairman and currently comprises
three executive directors (one of whom is the Chairman) and
three independent non-executive directors as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr Li Haifeng (Chairman)
Mr Lee Sheng Kuang, James (Managing Director)
Mr Tang Chak Lam, Charlie

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr Chen Zhongfa
Mr Tong Tang, Joseph
Mr Yau Wing Yiu

The biographical details of the directors are set out on
pages 37 to 40 of this Annual Report. The Board possesses
a balance of skill and experience which is appropriate for
the requirements of the business of the Group. A balanced
composition of executive and non-executive directors also
generates a strong independent element on the Board, which
can exercise independent judgement effectively and make
decision objectively for the best interests of the Company.
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The Company does not at present have any officer with the
title of “chief executive officer” (“CEQ”) but instead the duties
of a CEO are performed by the Managing Director. In order to
have a clear division between the management of the Board
and the day-to-day management of the business operation
of the Company, the role of the Chairman is separate from
that of the Managing Director. The Chairman focuses on
overall corporate development and strategic direction of the
Group and provides leadership for the Board and oversees
the efficient functioning of the Board. The Managing Director
is responsible for all day-to-day corporate management
matters as well as planning and developing the Group’s
strategy. Such division of responsibilities helps to reinforce
their independence and to ensure a balance of power
and authority. There is no relationship (including financial,
business, family or other material or relevant relationship)
among members of the Board and in particular, between the
Chairman and the Managing Director.

All the independent non-executive directors of the Company
have appropriate qualifications and their professional opinions
raised in the Board meetings facilitate the maintenance
of good corporate governance practices. The Company
has received from each of the independent non-executive
directors an annual confirmation of his independence. All the
independent non-executive directors meet the guidelines for
assessment of independence as set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules.

The Board is empowered under the Company’s Bye-laws to
appoint any person as a director either to fill a casual vacancy
on or as an additional member of the Board. The selection
criteria are mainly based on the professional qualification and
experience of the candidate and the recommendations of the
Nomination Committee. All directors are engaged on service
contracts for a term of three years. A newly appointed director
must retire and be re-elected at the first general meeting after
his/her appointment.

At each annual general meeting of the Company, one-third
of the directors for the time being (or, if their number is not
three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but
not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation.
Every director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years. As such, no director has a term of
appointment longer than three years. A retiring director shall
be eligible for re-election.
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To enable all directors to make informed decisions in
the Board meetings and to discharge their duties and
responsibilities, appropriate, complete and reliable information
prepared by the management are provided in a timely manner.
All directors are kept informed on a timely basis of major
changes that may affect the Group’s business, including
relevant rules and regulations. To reinforce independence, the
Board and each director can have separate and independent
access to the management of the Company if additional
information is required. To further assist the directors to
discharge their duties to the Company, the Board has also
established a written procedure to enable directors to seek
independent professional advice at the Company’s expenses.
No request was made by any director for such independent
professional advice in 2014.

In order to have a clear principle in relation to the matters
specifically reserved to the Board for decisions, functions
between the Board and the management are formalized. The
Board has established a written guideline determining which
issues require a decision of the Board and those delegated to
the management. The guideline is reviewed by the Board on
a regular basis and has been posted on the intranet of the
Company. Matters reserved to the Board for decision include
the making of significant financial and legal commitments,
mergers and acquisitions, material asset acquisitions or
disposals, the change of share capital, the approval of
financial reporting, budgeting, management succession
and representation to shareholders. The management is
responsible for the day-to-day running of the Group. The
management is required to submit reports on the operations
to the Board on a regular basis and make recommendations
to the Board on the development of major projects or
business proposals and their respective implementation. The
Board is of the view that such division of responsibilities can
enhance the corporate governance of the Company.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of any possible legal action against its directors and
officers and the insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual
basis.
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At least four regular Board meetings are held a year with
at least fourteen days’ notice given to all directors to
approve annual and interim results, review the business
operation and the internal control system of the Group and
the meeting schedule will be fixed at the beginning of each
year to facilitate fullest possible attendance. Between regular
meetings, other Board meetings are held to approve major
issues when necessary. Agendas and accompanying Board
papers are sent not less than three days before the date
of Board meetings to ensure that the directors are given
sufficient review time. Draft minutes of Board meetings and
Board committee meetings are circulated to directors for their
review and comment while final version of the said minutes,
duly signed, are sent to all members for their records. All
said minutes are kept by the Company Secretary of the
Company and are open for inspection at any reasonable time
on reasonable notice by any director.

During the year, four Board meetings were held and the
attendance records of directors are set out on page 26 of
this Annual Report.

The Company provides briefings and other training to develop
and refresh the directors’ knowledge and skills. As part
of an ongoing process of directors’ training, the Company
Secretary continuously updates all directors on latest
developments regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements to ensure compliance and enhance
their awareness of good corporate governance practices.
The Company Secretary also circulates details of training
courses which may be of interest to directors. All directors
are encouraged to attend training courses at the Company’s
expense. All directors provided the Company their training
records for the year ended 31 December 2014.

During the year, the Company organized and funded a
formal training session conducted by its legal counsel for
the directors and officers of the Company which covered
topics on connected transactions and the new Companies
Ordinance.
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The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions on terms no less exacting
than the required standard set out in the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model
Code”). Having made specific enquiry of all directors of the
Company, all directors have confirmed that they had complied
with the required standard set out in the Model Code and the
Company’s code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions during the year.

Details of the directors’ interests in the shares of the Company
as at 31 December 2014 are set out on pages 41 to 42 of
this Annual Report.

In accordance with Code A.6.4 of the CG Code, the Board
has also established a written guideline on no less exacting
terms than the Model Code for employees of the Company
or director or employee of the Company’s subsidiaries or
holding company who are likely to possess inside information
in relation to the Group or securities of the Company. No
incident of non-compliance was noted by the Company in
2014,

The Board set up the Audit Committee in 2000 with specific
written terms of reference which deals clearly with its authority
and duties. The terms of reference are maintained on both
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. The
Audit Committee is to review the Group’s financial reporting,
the external auditor’'s independence, internal controls and
corporate governance issues and make recommendations to
the Board.

The members of the Audit Committee include:

Mr Yau Wing Yiu (Committee Chairman)
Mr Chen Zhongfa
Mr Tong Tang, Joseph

All Audit Committee members are independent non-executive
directors. During the year, the Audit Committee held four
meetings and the attendance records of members are set out
on page 26 of this Annual Report.
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The Audit Committee had mainly performed the following work
during the year:

(i) reviewed the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with the applicable standards;

(i) reviewed the draft interim and annual financial statements
and the related draft results announcements;

(i) reviewed the change in accounting standards and
assessment of potential impacts on the Group’s financial
statements;

(iv) reviewed the Group’s internal control system including
the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience
of staff of the Company’s accounting and financial
reporting function, and their training programmes and
budget, and discussed the relevant issues including
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions;

(v made recommendation on the appointment or
reappointment of the external auditors and approved their
terms of engagement;

(vi) reviewed and monitored the training and continuous
professional development of directors; and

(vii) reviewed the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board.

The Board set up the Remuneration Committee in 2005 with
specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with its
authority and duties. The terms of reference are maintained on
both the websites of Company and the Stock Exchange. The
Remuneration Committee’s role is to make recommendations
to the Board on the remuneration policy and structure for
directors and senior management and to ensure that they
are fairly rewarded for their individual contribution to the
Group’s overall performance, having regard to the interests
of shareholders. The principal duties of the Remuneration
Committee include reviewing and making recommendations
to the Board on the specific remuneration packages of all
directors and senior management as well as performance-
based remuneration by reference to corporate goals and
objectives resolved by the Board from time to time.
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The members of the Remuneration Committee include:

Mr Chen Zhongfa (Committee Chairman)
Mr Tong Tang, Joseph

Mr Yau Wing Yiu

Mr Tang Chak Lam, Charlie

Except for Mr Tang Chak Lam, Charlie who is an executive
director, all Remuneration Committee members are
independent non-executive directors. During the year, the
Remuneration Committee held three meetings and the
attendance records of members are set out on page 26
of this Annual Report. The Remuneration Committee had
recommended to the Board the renewal of the service
agreements of five directors. The remuneration of each of the
directors was determined in accordance with the remuneration

policy.

The main principles of remuneration policy of the Company
are:

() to retain and motivate executive directors and senior
management by linking their compensation with
performance as measured against corporate objectives;

(i) to align executive directors’ and senior management’s
remuneration with shareholders’ interests; and

(iii) to ensure that no director or senior management or any of
his associate is involved in deciding his own remuneration.

When fixing the remuneration packages of executive directors,
considerations have been given to the qualifications and
experience of the executive directors, their duties and
responsibilities with and contributions to the Group, the
level of directors’ remuneration of other comparable listed
companies in Hong Kong, the Group’s performance and the
prevailing market condition. The principal elements of the
remuneration packages of executive directors of the Company
include salary, director’s fee, double pay, discretionary bonus
and share options.

Details of the remuneration of each director, on a named
basis, are disclosed in Note 14 to the financial statements
on pages 88 to 90 of this Annual Report. Reimbursement
is provided for out-of-pocket expenses incurred (including
traveling and hotel expenses) in connection with the
performance of directors’ duties.

FHEZEEXERRE:

REFLE(ZEELE)
EERE
BB 7K 8 5t

FHMEREERMTESI HFMEZE
B RBILIFNTES - NF
N FHZEeRRT=ZRE® K&
ZHFEREHNAFEREFR268 © 5
WEEeCEREFenTINESER
R EH - B EFZFH REH MK

RMETE -

5)
e AN |
= T s

RABHMB R EZRA B

) RBRBEMABBTEERERERE
AB  #SHEFzHFMEZEOEXBR
LRI

(i) BATEELRSREEAB ZFHM
BRI s 2 R — B K

(i BRI BMESSISREEASLH
FRBHBATLHEEBEFEERAZE
[

RIVHMTESZHMNGER  EEEX
FRTEFZEERER  WEZBG
FBEMEAEE 2 ER - BEEMA
BT RARZEFHHMKE  A&H
ZERBRBITHHBR - ARRAITE
EFMNEB IR IRBREFE EF
e B8 MIFEARBRE-

BN E AN BERESHMN 2 F
18 RAFEREFSSH 2= F0H B 7%
HEM 14N PEE - HEI A EEN—
IR EBTESRERMELEZERE
HERBEEKREBEER) -

23



The Board set up the Nomination Committee in 2012
with specific written terms of reference which deal clearly
with its authority and duties. The terms of reference are
maintained on both the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange. The role of the Nomination Committee is to
formulate policy and make recommendations to the Board on
matters including nomination and appointment of directors,
and structure and composition of the Board.

During the year, the Board had maintained a board diversity
policy setting out the approach to achieve diversity on the
Board.

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced
development, the Company sees increasing diversity at
the Board level as an essential element in supporting the
attainment of its strategic objectives and its sustainable
development. In designing the Board’s composition, Board
diversity has been considered from a number of aspects,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates
will be considered against objective criteria, having due regard
for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

The members of the Nomination Committee include:

Mr Li Haifeng (Committee Chairman)
Mr Chen Zhongfa

Mr Tong Tang, Joseph

Mr Yau Wing Yiu

Except for Mr Li Haifeng who is an executive director, all
Nomination Committee members are independent non-
executive directors. During the year, the Nomination
Committee held one meeting to review the structure, size
and composition and succession planning of the Board and
assess the independence of the independent non-executive
directors. The attendance records of members are set out on
page 26 of this Annual Report.
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The Board set up the Investment Committee in March 2014
with specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with
its authority and duties. The primary role of the Investment
Committee is to approve the investment policy and monitor
the securities investment business as it deems proper to
meet the latest development of the Group or changes in the
securities market.

The members of the Investment Committee include:

Mr Li Haifeng (Committee Chairman)
— Appointed as Committee Chairman on 7 June 2014
Mr Lee Sheng Kuang, James
— Appointed on 7 June 2014
Mr Tang Chak Lam, Charlie
Mr Huang Xuxian
— Resigned on 7 June 2014

During the year, the Investment Committee held one meeting
and the attendance records of members are set out on page
26 of this Annual Report.

During the vyear, the Investment Committee had mainly
performed the following work:-

() approved and updated the investment policy including
objectives and strategy that direct investment activities;

(i) oversaw investment activities of the Group and controlled
the associated risk levels to assure adherence to the
investment policy;

(iii) monitored the performance of the investment portfolio
and approved the appointment of the external investment
professionals.
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The attendance of individual

Board member in Board (2 E—PUFE+ - A=+—HItFE -

meetings, Board Committees meetings and general meetings BEREESKENRESTEEH  EFZ
for the year ended 31 December 2014 is set out in the table BegaMRRARGIHELHEHNT

below:

Executive Directors

HBITEE

Mr Li Haifeng
FiEM Lt

Mr Lee Sheng Kuang, James
Fhlks

Mr Huang Xuxian, Flynn

— resigned on 7 June 2014
%m%%i

— RZE-WNFERNALHET

Mr Tang Chak Lam, Charlie
HERLTE

Independent Non-Executive Directors

BUFHTEE

Mr Chen Zhongfa
RAEELE

Mr Tong Tang, Joseph
BERE

Mr Yau Wing Yiu
Bk i 55
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The directors of the Company acknowledge their
responsibility for preparing the financial statements of the
Group in accordance with statutory requirements and
applicable accounting standards. The directors will select
suitable accounting policies and apply them consistently,
make judgements and estimates that are prudent, fair
and reasonable and prepare the financial statements on a
going concern basis. The Board’s responsibility to present
a balanced, clear and understandable assessment extends
to annual and interim reports, other inside information
announcements and other financial disclosures required under
the Listing Rules as well as the information required to be
disclosed pursuant to statutory requirements.

The statement of the auditor of the Company regarding their
reporting responsibilities for the financial statements of the
Group is set out on pages 45 to 46 of this Annual Report.

The Board has the ultimate responsibility to maintain a
sound and effective internal control system for the Group
to safeguard the shareholders’ investment and the Group’s
assets and to ensure strict compliance with relevant laws,
rules and regulations. The Audit Committee is responsible for
reviewing the effectiveness of the internal control system and
reporting to the Board. The scope of internal control relates
to areas including effectiveness and efficiency of operations,
reliability of financial reporting and compliance with applicable
laws and regulations.

During the year, the Board has reviewed the effectiveness of
the internal control system of the Group through the Audit
Committee. The review covers the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function, their training
programmes and budget, and all material controls, including
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions of the Group. No material internal
control aspects of any significant problems were noted. Both
the Audit Committee and the Board were satisfied that the
internal control system of the Group has been functioned
effectively during the year under review.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers is the external auditor of the
Company. For the year ended 31 December 2014, the
external auditor received the following remuneration for audit
and non-audit services provided to the Group:

BEFOKEGFEBMAARRT ZI
B 22 -_T—NF+_A=+
—HIEFE  NEZBEIE RAAEE
R E R IEEFT RS UET 51 B
ok

HK$’000

FHET

Audit services H T AR 1,200
Non-audit services JEEFT RS

Taxation services 5 7% R 7% 76

Review of reports regarding rights issue =HEBAER 2 WS 175

1,451

The Audit Committee received written confirmation from
the external auditor on its independence and objectivity
as required by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

According to the Bye-laws of the Company, shareholders’
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company, can by
written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary
of the Company to convene a special general meeting for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition
and such meeting shall be held within two months after
the deposit of such requisition. In compliance with the
requirements of the Listing Rules, any annual general meeting,
and general meeting at which the passing of a special
resolution is to be considered shall be called by at least 20
clear business days’ notice, whilst others may be called by
at least 10 clear business days’ notice.
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To further enhance the minority shareholders’ right, all
resolutions at any general meeting are decided on poll and
such practice has been adopted since 2005. The chairman
of any general meetings ensures that the shareholders are
informed of the detailed procedures for conducting a poll by
way of making the explanation at the commencement of the
general meetings. The chairman of general meetings also
ensures full compliance with the requirements about voting
by poll contained in the Listing Rules and the Bye-laws of the
Company.

The procedures for a shareholder to propose a person for
election as a director can be found on the website of the
Company. Shareholders representing not less than one-
twentieth of the total voting rights of all shareholders having
at the date of the requisition a right to vote at the general
meeting or who are no less than 100 shareholders can submit
a written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary
to propose a resolution relating to other matters at a general
meeting. The written requisition must state the resolution,
accompanied by a statement of not more than one thousand
words with respect to the matter referred to in the proposed
resolution or the business to be dealt with at the general
meeting and contain the signatures of all the requisitionists
(which may be contained in one document or in several
documents in like form). Such requisition must be deposited
at the Company’s registered office at Clarendon House, 2
Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda not less than six
weeks before the general meeting in the case of a requisition
requiring notice of a resolution and not less than one week
before the general meeting in the case of any other requisition
and be accompanied by a sum of money reasonably sufficient
to meet the Company’s expenses in serving the notice of
the resolution and circulating the statement given by the
requisitionists to all shareholders in accordance with the
requirements under the applicable laws and rules.

RE—TRBIBBRRZEN - AR
KRR LZ—IIRBRHUARET AR
ROMERE-_ZTERFEECEM - F
ARRASERBEBREEBRKER
REFRFRELFARBZ A - B
RAMBUARETARARZERF - RER
REeEEMAERREZET S EHHRA MR
ARRIZ ERMAMAFEEBARET AL
R °

BRERBAELRREEZZEFAREAAD
AN AT RENERER  %E
RIREREEREEN 2 Z2BRERK
EETNPR T2 ZBREH TR
—BERER - UTREZEESHLAFWER
EEAERURBRERELIEZEEBHE
MEEZRER - E@MERAYIFRZE
K BRI ZR—TFEEEMRESE
RERRACEEIBRBRERZ LR
BrERIAHEBELERCATESE
(AT &R — XX sk Z D MR TFIRE 2 X
M) ZBRILE - MEHBZRLAZRRE
MZERk - BIBEEERARNBRRERET
DRANEE2BAIREARRR MRS
& - bk AClarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda : fi#/&
EREMER - AZARKRERERN DR
—E28pxE  WEER-Z£ARX
PR B AR 15 38 B ) X AR BI AR 7€ i @)
TERBRREEAZRBALERED
ERATRIZRAEFFEERI A
BHEHNIE -

29



In order to maintain an on-going dialogue with shareholders,
shareholders are encouraged to attend annual general
meeting of the Company at which the Chairman of the Board
and the chairmen of the Board committees are pleased to
answer questions related to the Group’s business.

Shareholders’ comments and suggestions are welcome and
such comments can be sent in writing to the Company
Secretary at the Company’s address in Hong Kong or by
e-mail to the Company’s website. The Board endeavors to
answer all invaluable questions of the shareholders.

As a channel of further promoting effective communication,
the corporate website, www.carrywealth.com, is maintained
by the Company to disseminate information on a timely basis
and the published information will be maintained at the above
website for at least five years. A shareholders communication
policy was adopted in March 2012 and has been posted on
the Company’s website.

There were no changes in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the year.
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The directors present their report together with the audited
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The activities of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 32 to the
financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by
operating segment is set out in Note 5 to the financial
statements.

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the
consolidated income statement on page 47.

The directors did not declare any interim dividend for the six
months ended 30 June 2014 (2013: Nil).

The directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2014.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended),
the contributed surplus of the Company shall not be
distributed to the shareholders if there are reasonable grounds
for believing that:

(i) the Company is, or would after the payment be, unable
to pay its liabilities as they become due; or

(i) the realisable value of the Company’s assets would
thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its
issued share capital and share premium account.

As at 31 December 2014, the Company had distributable
reserves amounting to HK$19,814,000 (2013: HK$31,675,000),
including the contributed surplus of HK$147,694,000 (2013:
HK$147,694,000) which is distributable subject to conditions
as set out above.

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company
during the year are set out in Note 29 to the financial
statements.
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Details of the movements in properties, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in Note 15 to the
financial statements.

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company
are set out in Note 27 to the financial statements.

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out
in Note 32 to the financial statements.

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Group had no bank
borrowings.

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page
5 of this Annual Report.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year.

On 22 May 2012, the shareholders of the Company approved
the adoption of a share option scheme (the “Scheme”). A
summary of the principal terms of the Scheme, as disclosed in
accordance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) is as follows:

The purpose of the Scheme is to enable the Company to
grant options to participants as incentives or rewards for
their contribution or potential contribution to the Company
and/or any of the subsidiaries.
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Any person being an employee, director (including
executive, non-executive director or independent non-
executive director), consultant, representative, professional
adviser, customer, business partner, joint venture partner,
strategic partner, landlord or tenant of, or any supplier
or provider of goods or services to, the Company or any
subsidiary, and any trustee(s) of a discretionary trust of
which one or more beneficiaries belong to any of the
abovementioned category(ies) of persons.

The total number of shares available for issue under the
Scheme is 29,687,987 which is 3.69% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the date of this Annual
Report.

No qualifying participant shall be granted any options
which, if exercised in full, would result in such person’s
maximum entitlement exceeding 1% of the aggregate
number of shares for the time being issued and issuable
under the Scheme in the 12-month period up to and
including the proposed grant date unless such grant
is approved in advance by the shareholders in general
meeting.

No qualifying participant who is a substantial shareholder
or an independent non-executive director of the Company,
or any of their respective associates shall be granted any
options, which, if exercised in full, would result in the
shares issued and issuable to such person under the
Scheme in the 12-month period up to and including the
proposed grant date for such options, unless such grant
of options is approved in advance by the shareholders of
the Company in general meeting:

(@) representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the number of
shares then in issue; and

(b) having an aggregate value, based on the closing price
of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheets on each relevant date on which the
grant of such options is made to such person under
the relevant scheme, in excess of HK$5 million,
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In respect of any particular option, such period
commencing on the date of grant or such later date as
the directors may decide and expiring on such date as
the directors may determine, such period not to exceed
10 years from the date of grant.

An offer of the grant of an option shall remain open for
acceptance for a period of 30 days from the date of the
letter containing the grant. An offer of the grant of the
option shall be regarded as having been accepted when
the duplicate of the grant letter duly signed by the grantee
together with a remittance in favour of the Company of
HK$1.00 by way of consideration for the grant thereof is
received by the Company.

The subscription price in respect of any particular option
shall be such price as the directors may determine at the
date of grant of the relevant option but shall be at least
the highest of:

(@ The closing price of the Company’s shares as stated
in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange
on the date of grant, which must be a business day;

(b) The average closing price of the Company’s shares
as stated in the daily quotations sheets of the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and

() The nominal value of the Company’s shares.

The directors shall be entitled at any time within 10 years
commencing on 22 May 2012 to offer the grant of an
option to any qualifying participants.

Under the terms of the Scheme, the Company granted a total
of 18,100,000 shares options to certain qualifying participants
on 29 August 2012 with rights to subscribe for a total of
18,100,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each in the share
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capital of the Company at an exercise price of HK$0.419 per AR AR EREEOIB T2 E@BARA &
share. The closing price per share immediately before the date 18,100,000/% - EH & HH BRI 2 ™
of grant was HK$0.415. Upon completion of a rights issue EBRER0415BIL - RZFE—WMF A
on 13 February 2014, the number of share options held by T=HHKRTERE  ERAMFENE
the grantees was adjusted from 17,100,000 share options to A% 4 2% B 517,100,000 B& A% #E 3 & &
18,105,884 share options and the exercise price was adjusted 18,105,88417 fg iz #& - 1T1FE AIH0.419
from HK$0.419 per share to HK$0.396 per share. Details of BT ER0I96E T - BIBZFED
share options granted under the Scheme and outstanding as EEMR-ZE—NF+A=+—8%

at 31 December 2014 are as follows: RITE2EREZFBEOT :
Number of share options
BRENE
Adjusted
At during the Lapsed  Exercised At
Position held with 1 January year during the during the 31 December
Name of grantees the Company 2014 (Note 3) year year 2014
REATER R-F-ME REFAE RERH RER R-F-0F
ERA%Z Z B fi -A-H (Bt E3) F3 fif +=A=+-H
Mr Li Haifeng Chairman and Executive 4,000,000 235,294 - - 4,235,294
Director
FEArE IRRUTES
Mr Lee Sheng Kuang, James Managing Director and 3,000,000 176,471 - - 3,176,471
Executive Director
FHrLE ERHELBERNTES
Mr Huang Xuxian, Flynn Executive Director 3,000,000 176,471 (3,176,471) - -
— Resigned on 7 June 2014 (Note 4)
BIRHMLE HITES (Pt 5E4)
- RZE-WFERALAEE
Mr Tang Chak Lam, Charlie Executive Director 1,000,000 58,824 - - 1,058,824
HERLE HiTES
Mr Chen Zhongfa Independent Non- 1,000,000 58,824 - - 1,058,824
Executive Director
BRA%ELE BUFHTES
Mr Yau Wing Yiu Independent Non- 1,500,000 88,235 — (1,588,235 -
Executive Director (Note 5)
il 97 it BUFHTES (B 5¥5)
13,500,000 794119 (3176,471) (1,588,239 9,529,413
Continuous contract employees 3,600,000 211,765 - - 3,811,765
EEANESR
Total 17,100,000 1,005,884  (3,176,471) (1,588,235 13,341,178
it
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Notes:
1. No share options were granted and cancelled during the year.

2. All the above share options granted are exercisable during the following
periods:

(@) up to 50% of the share options are exercisable from 29 August
2013 to 28 August 2014 (the “First Period”); and

(b) the remaining 50% of the share options together with any share
options not exercised during the First Period shall be exercisable
from 29 August 2014 to 28 August 2022.

3. The number of share options was adjusted upon completion of a
rights issue on 13 February 2014. The exercise price was adjusted to
HK$0.396 per share.

4.  The share options lapsed after resignation of Mr Huang Xuxian, Flynn
as an executive director.

5. The share options were exercised at an exercise price of HK$0.396
per share. The closing price per share immediately before the date on
which the options were exercised was HK$0.950.

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Mr Li Haifeng (Chairman)
Mr Lee Sheng Kuang, James (Managing Director)
Mr Huang Xuxian, Flynn
— resigned on 7 June 2014
Mr Tang Chak Lam, Charlie
Mr Chen Zhongfa*
Mr Tong Tang, Joseph*
Mr Yau Wing Yiu*

# Independent Non-Executive Director
In accordance with Bye-law 87 of the Company’s Bye-laws,
Mr Li Haifeng and Mr Chen Zhongfa shall retire from office

by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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Mr Li Haifeng
Chairman

Mr Li Haifeng, aged 44, was appointed as the Chairman and
an executive director in June 2011 and is the Chairman of
both the Nomination Committee and Investment Committee of
the Company. He is also the sole director of Dragon Peace
Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company. Mr Li is
responsible for overall corporate and business development,
and strategic direction of the Group and provides leadership
for the board of directors of the Company. Mr Li has extensive
experience in information technology and waste water
treatment industries. He is currently an executive director and
a vice president of Beijing Enterprises Water Group Limited
(“BEWG”) (@ company listed on the main board of the Stock
Exchange) and the chairman of the Supervisory Committee
of BEWG Environmental Group Co., Ltd, a wholly owned
subsidiary of BEWG, and is mainly responsible for both
the PRC and overseas water markets. Mr Li served as an
independent non-executive director of Simsen International
Corporation Limited (a company listed on the main board of
the Stock Exchange) for the period from April 2010 to April
2013. Mr Li holds a Bachelor degree in Law from the Faculty
of Law in Peking University in 1992,

Mr Lee Sheng Kuang, James
Managing Director

Mr Lee Sheng Kuang, James, aged 68, is a founder of the
Group and the Managing Director and a member of the
Investment Committee of the Company. Mr Lee is responsible
for all day-to-day corporate management matters. He is also
responsible for planning and developing the Group’s strategy.
Mr Lee has over thirty years of experience in the manufacture
and distribution of apparel products.
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Mr Tang Chak Lam, Charlie
Executive Director

Mr Tang Chak Lam, Charlie, aged 53, is a member of both
the Remuneration Committee and the Investment Committee
of the Company. He is responsible for the overall financial
operation of the Group. He has extensive audit experience
with one of the big four international accounting firms. Prior
to joining the Group in November 1999, Mr Tang was the
head of finance and accounting of a conglomerate with
subsidiaries listed on the NASDAQ in the United States and
the Australian Stock Exchange Limited and the China division
of another conglomerate listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr
Tang is a certified public accountant in Hong Kong, and is a
fellow member of both the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants in the United Kingdom.

Mr Chen Zhongfa
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr Chen Zhongfa, aged 65, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director in September 2011 and
is the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee, a member
of both the Audit Committee and Nomination Committee of
the Company. Mr Chen has extensive experience in enterprise
management. During March 1995 to June 2001, Mr Chen
had been the vice general manager and general manager
of Shanghai Tourism Investment and Development Group
Company in the PRC. From July 2001 to March 2010, Mr
Chen served as the chief economist, CFO, a director and the
vice general manager of China Landed Property Development
Group Company in the PRC. Since April 2011, Mr Chen is the
vice chairman of the China Commerce Association for Senior
Citizens and a senior consultant to the Chinese Overseas
Students Development Fund. He was an independent
non-executive director of China Information Technology
Development Limited, whose shares are listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange, for the period from
August 2011 to January 2015. Mr Chen obtained a master
degree in International Enterprise Management from the Post
Graduate School of the Shanghai Finance and Economic
University in 1999. Since February 2009, Mr Chen is a Fellow
Member, Chartered Financial Practitioner of the Asia Pacific
Financial Services Association.

38

BOZFRITAE - 5858  MAXRRREFME
BEghitELZEEKE - FHEELEE
CEBRUKEH REALEEZ2EBTE
B BAENARBSENIT —ER -
—NNANF+—AmMEXRERA - L
ER—HEGEEE 2V BEERIE
T ZEBETZEWNEBRAREXER
NASDAQ K BME AR ZBER AR L
M NEES—HEBIETZGE
EPEFHRERIEE - BLEART
BRESIHA - TRBEALHNAE

REFALAR GG cEREE -

PRBZESEE
BUIBITEFE

PRAEZESAE - 6558  RZE——FNA
BEZERBUIFNITES - W AEARA]
JEMEESEXR  BREZEGRIESR
ZEEMEZLKE RELEHEES

PEEEB&R R—ANWAF=AZEC=
TE—FRA BRAEZSEFRRLEK
BIRERABEEERACEIRKEERE
KIB o R _FTE—FLHE_T—F
FZARBERNEBTEEEERESE
N ZBRETER - M EE  EERE
rigE o QT ——F WA - BEME
PEREZREEWERIZER  REFEZ
BATERESSSHER KT —
—FNAE-_TE—HF—AHH BY
BHEEEREERER AR (ERHD
REZPTRIZEIR ETH) 2B IERTTE
EoREER-NNANFREGFEHLE
P REBRFTELR BLEMEEEH
RHhEER - RN _ZTTNF_A#A
DARAERE B 2GRS A2

pi Ny =1
BAXREE -



Mr Tong Tang, Joseph
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr Tong Tang, Joseph, aged 55, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director in July 2013 and is a
member of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee of the Company respectively.
Mr Tong has over 28 years of experience in the financial
services industry. He is currently an executive director of
Sun Hung Kai & Co. Limited (“SHK”), a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, the Chief Executive
Officer of the Capital Markets and Institutional Brokerage of
SHK. He was the Group Chief Operating Officer of SHK and
previously held senior positions with a number of international
banks and financial institutions, including ABN AMRO Bank,
CCIC Finance Limited, Bain & Co. Securities Limited and Bali
International Finance Limited. Mr Tong is also an independent
director of Jih Sun Financial Holding Co., Ltd (and two of its
subsidiaries), the shares of which are listed on the Gre Tai
Securities Market (GTSM) in Taiwan. Mr Tong has a Bachelor’s
Degree in Social Sciences from the University of Hong Kong
and a Master’s Degree in Business Administration from the
Chinese University of Hong Kong, and is a fellow member of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.

Mr Yau Wing Yiu
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr Yau Wing Yiu, aged 48, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director in July 2011 and is the Chairman of
the Audit Committee, a member of both the Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company. He
has extensive experience in financial management, corporate
finance and investment. Mr Yau was the partner and Chief
Financial Officer of AID Partners Capital Limited which is a
private equity investment fund. Mr Yau also worked for various
listed companies in Hong Kong and overseas and a number
of international investment banks. He served as an executive
director of China Strategic Holdings Limited, whose shares
are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange, for the
period from December 2009 to January 2013. He was an
independent non-executive director and executive director of
China Everbright Water Limited, formerly known as HanKore
Environment Tech Group Limited, whose shares are listed
on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited and
is currently serving as its chief financial officer. Mr Yau is an
associate member of American Institute of Certified Public
Accountant and an associate member of Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountant. He holds a Master Degree
of Business Administration in Finance from The Hong Kong
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University of Science and Technology, Graduate School of
Business and a BA (Hons) in Business Studies from The City
University of Hong Kong.

None of the directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract
with the Company which is not determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

Mr Li Haifeng, the Chairman and an executive director, is also
the sole shareholder of Dragon Peace Limited, a substantial
shareholder of the Company. Pursuant to the underwriting
agreement dated 20 November 2013 entered into between
the Company and Dragon Peace Limited, Dragon Peace
Limited had undertaken to take up 276,254,000 Rights
Shares under the Rights Issue to the fullest extent assuming
all outstanding share options were exercised and no
qualifying shareholders had taken up any Rights Shares. The
underwriting agreement was terminated upon completion of
the Rights Issue on 13 February 2014.

Saved as disclosed above, no contracts of significance in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

None of the directors of the Company has engaged in or were
interested in any business which competed or was likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the
Group during the year.
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As at 31 December 2014, the interests of the directors of
the Company in the shares of the Company as recorded in
the register required to be kept under section 352 of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”) or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) were as follows:

R-ZZE—NNF+-_A=+—8 BEZE
HFREEGRL ([FHEEEK ) 5352
R EETFHEEZ B LM SRR IE
B TAZESETESFRINZEST
BI ([1Z 257 R J) ) AR R B) M Bt 32 P 3%
LB ARBESFHEELARRRMNDZ
BT

Number of shares/underlying shares

Personal
Name of director Capacity interests
ESftE 55 A
Mr Li Haifeng Interest of a controlled -

corporation
FEELE REtEE R
Beneficial owner 4,235,294
EnBEBA (Note 2)

(P5E2)
Mr Lee Sheng Kuang, James Beneficial owner 3,176,471
FHrkE ExBBA (Note 2)

(M &E2)
Mr Tang Chak Lam, Charlie Beneficial owner 1,058,824
HERLE EGBEAA (Note 2)

(B5E2)
Mr Chen Zhongfa Beneficial owner 1,068,824
REETE EREBA (Note 2)

(B 5k2)
Mr Yau Wing Yiu Beneficial owner 1,588,235
B ok 18 5% A ERBERAA
Notes:

1. The shares were held by Dragon Peace Limited, which was wholly
owned by Mr Li Haifeng.

2. The personal interests refer to share options granted as disclosed in
the section headed “SHARE OPTIONS”.

i/ HRKRGEE
Percentage of
Corporate Total issued share
interests interests capital
EEET
AT ED BEn &=, 074
404,944,690 404,944,690 50.32
(Note 1) (Note 1)
(B &) (BF7E1)
— 4,235,294 0.53
— 3,176,471 0.39
— 1,058,824 0.13
- 1,058,824 013
— 1,588,235 0.20
B &

1. %% mDragon Peace Limited#FH @ M
ZARBIEFEMEESEHE -

2. EAEGIEIEERE] -—HREEZERLZ

B
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All the interests stated above represent long positions. Save
as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, none of
the directors or chief executives of the Company had any
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or any associated corporation
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

As at 31 December 2014, the interests of the substantial
shareholders (as defined in the Listing Rules), other than
directors or chief executives, of the Company in the shares of
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

EXFrtz ARG BIE - BR L
N EEN - RIBFHFRAEGOE
352 R E B T 17 2 & se il P ac 8% 3k
BEFETAMARR REBRZMEL 2
B RZZTE—WOF+—A=+—H "
ARREERERITEABREREAR
RISk AT AE B A E (R & 5 K R B & 5
EXVE ZEER) 2D - HEARMDHE
BERHEECMERIORE o

RZE—NF+_A=1+—H BEX
SR EIEFEIBCEMEBATHEEL
Bt AR EERER(ESE
REMBRANBRESIESITHAEN
BEARRRMDZERIT

Number of Percentage of
Name of shareholder Capacity ordinary shares issued share capital
B 3R & 8 5 TiERBROEB HEETRAESL
Dragon Peace Limited Beneficial owner 404,944,690 50.32
(Note 1) (Note 1)
EREEA (B 7E1) (B 5E1)
Shiny Gloss Limited Beneficial owner 40,372,000 5.02
(Note 2)
EnEEA (Mf5E2)
Liang Cunyan Interest of a controlled 40,372,000 5.02
corporation (Note 2)
REH RIEHERE 2 s (Ft5E2)
Notes: B 5 -

1. The shares were held by Dragon Peace Limited, which was wholly
owned by Mr Li Haifeng. These interests were duplicated with
the interests of Mr Li Haifeng as disclosed in the section headed
“INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS”.

2. Pursuant to a notice filed under Part XV of the SFO, 40,372,000 shares

in the Company were held by Shiny Gloss Limited, which was wholly
owned by Liang Cunyan.
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All the interests stated above represent long positions. Save
as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, none of
the substantial shareholders, other than directors or chief
executives, of the Company had any interests or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register required to be kept under section
336 of the SFO.

Save as disclosed in the sections headed “INTERESTS
OF DIRECTORS” and “INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS” above, the register required to be kept
under section 336 of the SFO shows that as at 31 December
2014, the Company had not been notified of any other person
who had an interest or short position in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company.

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.

The change in the information of directors of the Company,
which is required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1)
of the Listing Rules, is as follows:

On 12 December 2014, Mr Yau Wing Yiu, an independent
non-executive director of the Company, resigned as executive
director of China Everbright Water Limited, formerly known as
HanKore Environment Tech Group Limited, whose shares are
listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited
and is currently serving as its chief financial officer.

On 30 January 2015, Mr Chen Zhongfa, an independent
non-executive director of the Company, resigned as an
independent non-executive director of China Information
Technology Development Limited, whose shares are listed on
the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange.

Save as disclosed above, there is no other information
required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the
Listing Rules.
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The percentages of purchases and sales for the vyear

AEET2HEBREPNEARNMEZ

attributable to the Group’s major suppliers and customers are REBLREEAS LW :
as follows:
()  Purchases ®KiE
— the largest supplier — mAHERY 22.5%
— five largest suppliers combined — AR EE AR 62.7%
(i) Sales iHE
— the largest customer — RREF 57.0%
— five largest customers combined — AREFPE&R 99.1%

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholder of
the Company (which to the knowledge of the directors owns
more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had an interest
in the major suppliers or customers noted above at any time
during the year.

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors of the
Company, as at the date of this Annual Report, the public
float of the shares of the Company is sufficient.

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws or the Laws of Bermuda.

The financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment in the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting.

On behalf of the Board
Lee Sheng Kuang, James
Managing Director

Hong Kong, 25 March 2015
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_E
pwc

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Carry Wealth Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages 47
to 112, which comprise the consolidated and company
balance sheets as at 31 December 2014, and the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and
of the Group as at 31 December 2014, and of the Group’s
loss and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 25 March 2015
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 =2 =T —WNF+ A=+ —HIFE

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other gains — net
Selling expenses
Administrative expenses

Operating loss
Finance income

Loss before income tax
Income tax expense

Loss for the year attributable to
equity holders of the Company

Loss per share for loss attributable to
the equity holders of the Company

during the year
— basic (HK cents)

— diluted (HK cents)

Dividends

Y a8

HE A

EF

Hit Wzt — 8

HERX

1T XX

REEE

BE WA

BRPT ISR AIE 1B

PSR X

RABIERFTEA
EIEFEERE

FARARRFEEHTAA
EIEE 1R < B E B
— EARGE)
— BE GBI

f B

The accompanying notes on pages 55 to 112 are an integral
part of these consolidated financial statements.

Note
B 5

10

11

12

2014
—F-mF
HK$°000
FHER

153,176
(119,768)

33,408
540
(3,557)
(44,625)

(14,234)
991

(13,243)
(1,481)

(14,724)

(1.90)

(1.90)

2013
—ET-=F
HK$’000
F#ETT
(Restated)
(B&E7)
(Note 11)
(Bt 5E11)

145,838
(131,167)

14,671
1,046
(3,511)

(43,019)

(30,813)
753

(30,060)
(156)

(30,216)

(5.56)

(5.56)
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HiZ =T —WNF+—_A=+—HILFE

2014 2013
—FE—-NE —"FT—=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
THER FHET
Loss for the year FEER (14,724) (30,216)
Other comprehensive income: Hib2mUAc:
Items that will not be reclassified HEETAJEHTHEE
subsequently to profit or loss Bk 2 HE
Fair value gain, net of tax: ArEdE - NRRIE:
— properties, plant and equipment — ¥ BEREE 2,401 2,146
Release of deferred tax liability upon & I i R AR F R AR BR B
disposal of land and buildings BEXERIEEE - 1,426
2,401 3,572
Item that may be reclassified to profit or A]E# 7B Z 8z k2 A H
loss
Currency translation differences (&N Z% (21) (345)
Other comprehensive income for the FEHEMEAWRA - IR IE
year, net of tax 2,380 3,227
Total comprehensive loss for the year AR GIEZREFAE A B
attributable to equity holders of the FELEEBERE
Company (12,344) (26,989)

The accompanying notes on pages 55 to 112 are an integral 5558 2 F1128 BE M 2 MY 5% Th bt & 4R
part of these consolidated financial statements. BB HmEK—E1H -
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As at 31 December 2014 A=ZZE— WM&+ -_A=+—H

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Properties, plant and equipment
Land use rights

Current assets
Inventories
Trade and other receivables

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Bank deposits
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

EQUITY

Capital and reserves attributable

to the Company’s equity
holders

Share capital
Other reserves
Retained earnings

Total equity

Note
B 5
BE
ERHEE
- BmELEE 15
+ b {F A 16
MENE E
FE 20
B 5N H b e U sk 18 21
BAREFABREEZ
SREE 22
RITIHF R 23
BehIBeE£EEEB 24
MEE
i
HEASIHERBTAA
[EBitZ2 EAXRGEE
& < 27
H 4th & 29
REB AT
EER

2014
—F-mF
HK$’000
FHER

58,610
15,705

74,315

25,087
25,440

113,687
7,949
110,625

282,788

357,103

80,470
202,720
30,906

314,096

2013
—E—=4F
HK$ 000
FHETT

59,078
16,069

75,147

24,163
24,572

7,830
101,408

157,973

233,120

53,541
94,744
45147

193,432
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As at 31 December 2014 AZZE— WM&+ -_A=+—H

2014 2013
—FE—-NE —"FT—=F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FHET FHET
LIABILITIES BfE
Non-current liabilities EREEE
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEFTEHAE 25 8,240 5,959
Current liabilities REB&E
Trade and other payables B 5 & EoAth & 5RI8 26 34,767 33,729
Total liabilities BEE 43,007 39,688
Total equity and liabilities BMEZRAER 357,103 233,120
Net current assets mEEEFE 248,021 124,244
Total assets less current BEERRBER
liabilities 322,336 199,391
Lee Sheng Kuang, James Tang Chak Lam, Charlie
FBE BHER
Managing Director Executive Director
EFEETE HITEF

The accompanying notes on pages 55 to 112 are an integral 5558 2 F1128 BE M 2 M 5% To bt 4R
part of these consolidated financial statements. BB HmEK—EH -
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As at 31 December 2014 A= —MF+ = 7

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Investments in subsidiaries
Amount due from a subsidiary

Current assets
Other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

EQUITY

Capital and reserves attributable
to the Company’s equity
holders

Share capital
Other reserves
Accumulated losses

Total equity

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Other payables and accruals

Total liabilities
Total equity and liabilities
Net current assets

Total assets less current
liabilities

Lee Sheng Kuang, James

=t+-8

Note

B &
=f-3
ERBEE
REB A
—FEHBA

AIZIE 17
AR 18

RENEE
H {th fE W FRIE 21
BehIBeE£EEEB 24

HEE

i

HEASH#EEZFAA
BlEZEXRRGEE

g AR 27
H A& 29
RETEE

MHEm

BfE
RBEE

H b fE A B &

ExtE A 26

HEE
HESREE
RBEEFHE
HEERTRHER

2014
—F—-DmF
HK$°000
FERT

21,725
291,076

312,801

861
1,148

2,009
314,810

80,470
361,506
(127,880)

314,096

714

714
314,810
1,295

314,096

Tang Chak Lam, Charlie

TR HER
Managing Director Executive Director
B HEAETE HITEF

The accompanying notes on pages 55 to 112 are an integral
part of these consolidated financial statements.

2013
HK$ 000
FHT

27,880
164,036

191,916

1,893
1,172

3,065
194,981

53,541
255,910
(116,019)

193,432

1,549
1,549
194,981
1,516

193,432

F558 £ F1128 K |31Tz B 5 T5 itk & 4R
BB HRER— 1B
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HiZ =T —WNF+—_A=+—HILFE

Balance at 1 January 2013
Comprehensive income

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income

Fair value gain, net of tax:

— properties, plant and equipment

Release of deferred tax liabilities upon

disposal of buildings
Currency translation differences

Total other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive loss
Transactions with owners
Issuance of shares

Employees share option scheme
— Value of employee services

— Lapse of share options

Total transactions with owners,
recognised directly in equity

Balance at 31 December 2013

R-F-—=F—-A—R&H

EEWA

FERE

Hitg 2 mE B A

AR EWE - MEBRHIE:

- VE BELRE

£ i A8 T B AR BR
IR B RE

PE S ER

Hth 2E A EHE
THEERER
BERANETZIRS
EITH D

BB BRERE

- BERBEE
— BRI

BERANETZIRSAE
HENEmDER

R-ZE-—=F+"A=+—H0&%

The accompanying notes on pages 55 to 112 are an integral
part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Attributable to equity holders
of the Company

ENSE: S5 RPN X ]

Share Other Retained
capital reserves earnings
xR HEthiEE REREA
(Note 29)
(Bff 5£29)

HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000
TET FET TET
44,617 73,927 69,782

— — (80,216)
— 2,146 —
— (4,065) 5,491
- (345) -
— (2,264) 5,491
— (2,264) (24,725)
8,924 21,448 —
— 1,723 —
— (90) 90
8,924 23,081 90
53,541 94,744 45147

Total
st

HK$’000

T

188,326

(30,216)

2,146

1,426
(345)

3,227

(26,989)

30,372

1,723

32,095

193,432

FE558 F F2E B M Z I 1 Ty itk B 47

BB EmER—BMD -



For the year ended 31 December 2014 HiZ =T —WNF+—_A=+—HIFE

Balance at 1 January 2014
Comprehensive income
Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income

Fair value gain, net of tax:

— properties, plant and equipment
Currency translation differences

Total other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive loss

Transactions with owners

Issuance of shares pursuant to a rights
issue

Employees share option scheme
— Value of employee services
— Exercise of share options

— Lapse of share options

Total transactions with owners,
recognised directly in equity

Balance at 31 December 2014

R-E-—NF—-—A—Hi&EH
2EBA
FEER

H 2 H 4 A
NaAEWE - NEHRIE:
- VE BEERE
IE R ER

Hit 2HE AL

EHEEEARE

BERANETZIRS
R AT
B BB T 8
- RERBE®E

— TR R
— BREAX

HBEAENETZRHEHE

R-EBE—NE+-A=1+—H&H

The accompanying notes on pages 55 to 112 are an integral
part of these consolidated financial statements.

Attributable to equity holders

of the Company

EATHEZHBANEN
Share Other Retained
capital reserves earnings
BEE HibfEds RIERAN
(Note 29)
(Bt 5%29)

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TER TET TER
53,541 94,744 45,147

- - (14,724)
- 2,401 -
—_ (21) —_
- 2,380 -

- 2,380 (14,724)
26,770 105,136 -
- 473 -
159 470 -

- (483) 483
26,929 105,596 483
80,470 202,720 30,906

Total
st

HK$’000

FERT

193,432

(14,724)

2,401
(21)

2,380

(12,344)

131,906

473
629

133,008

314,096

558 F F12E BE M 2 I 71 T itk B4R

B EEmER —BMD -
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 & Z—Z— W&+ _A=+—HIFE

Cash flows from operating B EHZ2RERHE
activities
Cash used in operations KEFMAZEA®
Hong Kong profits tax refunded R[BIEEMFH
Overseas tax paid B &8N IR

Net cash used in operating activities 4X & & & Fr IR & /%58

Cash flows from investing BEEESZRERE

activities

(Increase)/decrease in bank (3 hn),/ R A ER1TTF 3K
deposits

Purchase of properties, plant and BEEWZ®E  BENEZE
equipment

Proceeds from disposal of HEWE  BENMEE
properties, plant and equipment Fr 1% 38

Interest received SR RS

Net cash generated from investing REEHELIR S FEE
activities

Cash flows from financing MEEHZ2RERE
activities
Proceeds from issuance of shares 1R #% (f Ax B 1T AR D Fr 1%

pursuant to a rights issue, net of FIE - HMBRAEBEEA
related fees

Proceeds from exercise of share 17150 IR ¥ T 13 IR
options

Proceeds from issuance of shares  Z17A% 1) Fr 18 218

Net cash generated from financing EEE /EBE LR & F58
activities

Effect of foreign exchange rate INBERES) B
changes

Net increase in cash and cash RARekREEFEHEAZ
equivalents N

Cash and cash equivalents at FUReRBFESEEBEIEE

beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of F&R I\ & LIRS EHEER
the year

The accompanying notes on pages 55 to 112 are an integral
part of these consolidated financial statements.
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2014
—F-mF

Note HK$’000
P 5E FHER

30 (123,309)

(123,309)

(119)
(1,104)

244
991

12

131,906

629

132,535

(21)

9,217

101,408

110,625

2013

=%

HK$'000
TAET

15,504
(1,308)

95
753

15,044

30,372

30,372

(1,004)

20,085

81,323

101,408

F558 = F112B B |31Tz B 5 T5 it 5 47
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Carry Wealth Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) manufacture and trade garment products and
engage in securities investment. The Group has production facilities in
Mainland China.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda and
is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The address
of its registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
HM 11, Bermuda.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in units of Hong
Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated.

These consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue
by the Board of Directors on 25 March 2015.

The basis of preparation and the principal accounting policies applied
in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied for all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS”). The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by
the revaluation of buildings (Note 2.5 and 15), and financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss (Notes 2.8 and 22).

In accordance with the transitional and saving arrangements
for Part 9 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622),
“Accounts and Audit” as set out in sections 76 to 87 of Schedule
11 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), the
consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance
with the applicable requirements of the predecessor Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 32) for this financial year and the comparative
period.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, and areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements, are disclosed in Note 4.

BEZRBRAFTART DR EMERE
(BB AEEDEEREERKERAR
NEBHFRE - AEERPEAEELEER
B

ARFE—HRBERETMKIHBRAR -
WHRBEABEXSHMAERRAR LM o EFEM
¥t & &= b 4k & Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda °

BREFHAN  BEFAMBHRRANEBT
REJEL -

EHRAMBERREN-Z—AF=A=+
TRESEESHETIE -

RENSHEAVBRRARMNZBREE
REESFHRERNTX - lRAEHAN
HEBRCAAMELREEERE -

AEBZEEUBRRVRREBUE
WERAN(EEHBREENDER -
BRE A B MR IIREE L AL
e W EMZET (K F2.5R15) R
BAnBEf A ABaRzemEE M
2.8122) 1 TLAER] ©

RIEBEBCREHEHI N E622F) BB 1F
B2 EE RIRBRHE - EA(RREH)
(5622F) M R11FE76E87IE Fr H 0V [ R
BREH] AFRFE R EHE 24
AMBHREDIEREG(ABRERINE
RNE)HBHATHRE -

RETABE BV RREEDN 2 WHRE
BAERE THRSHHE - B &£
ERAASESHREZBET FEE
BEITEEHE - $RAELE 2 HE
REEMEE  URHEAMERE
MEBEXZESE RG22 BB E
AFRIEEE o
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@)

(b)

Amended standards adopted by the Group

Amended standards and interpretations, mandatory for the
first time for the financial year beginning 1 January 2014 but
which currently do not have significant impact on the Group’s
reported results of operation and financial position (although
they may affect the accounting for future transactions and
events).

Amendment to HKAS 32, “Financial instruments:
Presentation” on asset and liability offsetting

Amendments to HKFRS 10, 12 and HKAS 27,
“Consolidation for investment entities”

Amendment to HKAS 36, “Impairment of assets” on
recoverable amount disclosures

Amendment to HKAS 39, “Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement”

HK(IFRIC) 21, “Levies”

New and amended standards and interpretations that have
been issued but are not effective for the financial year
beginning 1 January 2014 and have not been early adopted

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38, “Clarification of
acceptable methods of depreciation and amortization”?

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 41, “Agriculture:
bearer plants”

Amendment to HKAS 19, “Defined benefit plans:
employee contributions”

Amendment to HKAS 27, “Equity method in separate
financial statements™

HKFRS 9, “Financial instruments”®
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28, “Sale or

contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture”

Amendment to HKFRS 11, “Accounting for acquisitions of
interests in joint operations”?

@

®)
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R-ZE-—MFE—A—BRKRZTR
FERBRTERERMZLBTE
ARRE(BEETREYERER
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New and amended standards and interpretations that have (b)
been issued but are not effective for the financial year

beginning 1 January 2014 and have not been early adopted

(Continued)

e HKFRS 14, “Regulatory Deferral Accounts”?

e HKFRS 15, “Revenue from contracts with customers™

e Annual Improvement Project, “Annual Improvements

2012

e Annual Improvement Project, “Annual Improvements
2013

e Annual Improvement Project, “Annual Improvements
2014

1 effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 July 2014

2 effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2016
s effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 July 2016

4 effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2017
5 effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2018

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the
impact of adoption of the above new and amended standards
and interpretations but is not yet in a position to state whether
they would have a significant impact on its results of operation
and financial position.
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2.2.1 Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity
when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which control is transferred
to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that
control ceases.

(a) Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for
business combinations. The consideration transferred for
the acquisition of a subsidiary is the aggregate fair values
of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to the
former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group. The consideration transferred
includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement. Identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are measured initially
at their fair values at the acquisition date.

The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis.
Non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders to
a proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in the
event of liquidation are measured at either fair value or
the present ownership interests’ proportionate share in
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. All other components of non-controlling interests
are measured at their acquisition date fair value, unless
another measurement basis is required by HKFRS.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured to fair
value at the acquisition date; any gains or losses arising
from such re-measurement are recognised in profit or
loss.
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2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)

@

(®)

Business combinations (Continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
Group is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent
consideration that is deemed to be an asset or liability is
recognised in accordance with HKAS 39 either in profit
or loss or as a change to other comprehensive income.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured, and its subsequent settlement is accounted
for within equity.

The excess of the aggregate of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of
any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair
value of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded
as goodwill. If the total of consideration transferred,
non-controlling interest recognised and previously held
interest measured is less than the fair value of the net
assets of the subsidiary acquired, in the case of a bargain
purchase, the difference is recognised directly in the
income statement.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated. When necessary,
amounts reported by subsidiaries have been adjusted to
conform with the Group’s accounting policies.

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without
change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not
result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions — that is, as transactions with the owners of
the subsidiary in their capacity as owners. The difference
between fair value of any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying amount of net
assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or
losses on disposals to non-controlling interests are also
recorded in equity.
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2.2.1 Consolidation (Continued)
(c) Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained
interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair value
at the date when control is lost, with the change in
carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair
value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained interest. In
addition, any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss.

2.2.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company
at cost less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted
for by the Company on the basis of dividends received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of
the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified collectively as the board of directors
that makes strategic decisions.
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Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (HK$), which
is the Company’s functional and the Group’s presentation
currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions or valuation where items are re-measured.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translation at
year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the
consolidated profit or loss.

All foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in
the consolidated income statement within ‘administrative
expenses’.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets and
liabilities such as equities held at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair value
gain or loss. Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets, such as equities classified as available-for-sale, are
included in other comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial positions of all the group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the presentation
currency as follows:

() assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are
translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance
sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each consolidated income
statement are translated at average exchange rates; and

(i) all resulting currency translation differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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(c) Group companies (Continued)

On consolidation, currency translation differences arising from
the translation of the net investment in foreign operation, and
of relevant borrowings, are taken to other comprehensive
income. When a foreign operation is partially disposed or sold,
currency translation differences that were recorded in equity
are recognised in the consolidated income statement as part
of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition
of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of
the foreign entity and are translated at the closing rate.
Currency translation differences arising are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Buildings, comprising mainly factories and offices, are shown at fair
value, as determined by directors based on valuations by external
independent valuers which are performed on an annual basis, less
subsequent depreciation for land and buildings. Any accumulated
depreciation at the date of revaluation is eliminated against the
gross carrying amount of the asset and the net amount is restated
to the revalued amount of the asset. All other plant and equipment
are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses.

Leasehold land classified as finance lease and all other property,
plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less depreciation.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to
the acquisition of the items. Subsequent costs are included in the
asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance
are charged to the consolidated income statement during the
financial year in which they are incurred.

Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of land
and buildings are credited to the fixed asset revaluation reserve in
equity. Decreases that offset previous increases of the same asset
are charged against fixed asset revaluation reserve through other
comprehensive income and all other decreases are expensed in
the consolidated income statement.
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Properties, plant and equipment are depreciated at rates sufficient
to write off their cost or valuation to their residual values over their
estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The principal annual
rates are as follow:

Leasehold land interests Shorter of remaining lease term or
classified as finance estimated useful life
leases

Buildings Lower of 5% or estimated useful life

Leasehold improvements Shorter of lease term or estimated
useful life

Plant and machinery 10% to 40%

Furniture, office equipment 10% to 40%
and motor vehicles

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than
its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised within
‘other gains — net’ in the consolidated income statement.

When revalued assets are sold, the amounts included in other
reserves are transferred to retained earnings through other
comprehensive income.

The up-front prepayments made for leasehold land interests
recognised as operating leases and land use rights are expensed in
the consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over the
periods of the lease or the land use right. When there is impairment,
the impairment is expensed in the consolidated income statement.
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Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example, goodwill
— are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. In addition, all assets are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in
use.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped
at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other
than goodwill that suffer an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at each subsequent reporting date.

2.8.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: at fair value through profit or loss and loans
and receivables. The classification depends on the
purpose for which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification of its financial
assets at initial recognition and re-evaluates this
designation at every reporting date.

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are financial assets held for trading. A financial asset
is classified in this category if acquired principally for
the purpose of selling in the short term. Derivatives
are also categorised as held for trading unless they
are designated as hedges. Assets in this category are
classified as current assets if expected to be settled
within 12 months; otherwise, they are classified as
non-current.
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Classification (Continued)
(b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They are included
in currents assets, except for the amounts that are
settled or expected to be settled more than 12
months after the end of the reporting period which
are classified as non-current assets. The Group’s
loans and receivables comprise ‘trade and other
receivables’, ‘bank deposits’ and ‘cash and cash
equivalent’ in the balance sheet (Notes 2.12 and
2.13).

Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade-date — the date on which the
group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments
are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction
costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair
value through profit or loss are initially recognised at
fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in the
consolidated income statement. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from
the investments have expired or have been transferred
and the group has transferred substantially all risks
and rewards of ownership. Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair
value. Loans and receivables are subsequently carried at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value
of the “financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss” category, including net gains/(losses) on disposal
and remeasurement at fair value, are recognised in the
consolidated income statement within “Revenue”. Such
gains or losses arising prior to the announcement made
on 20 November 2013 in relation to the identification of
securities investment as a new business segment are
recognised in the consolidated income statement within
“Other gains — net”. Dividend income from financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss is recognised
in the consolidated income statement as part of
“Revenue” when the Group’s right to receive payments is
established.
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Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not
be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the
normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency
or bankruptcy of the company or the counterparty.

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred only if
there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset
(a ‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors
or a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty,
default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation, and where observable data indicate that there is
a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such
as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with
defaults.

For loans and receivables, the amount of the loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the
asset is reduced and the amount of the loss is recognised in
the consolidated income statement. If a loan or held-to-maturity
investment has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for
measuring any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate
determined under the contract. As a practical expedient, the Group
may measure impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair value
using an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as
an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of
the previously recognised impairment loss is recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

EEANAZXRBIMITZEMNE DR
¢H AEERIFBEELELEIRKE
REENGEAER  REENE
BEFARE YN EEABERNFER
& o REATITREN N SBURN KRR E
HmE  ME—REBBEPURMR
AREFHT—H-—BHREYD  BER
BEN K ER - 197 T AR B BAIT o

BEBHKAD Rz EE

AEENBEBSHRFEEREER
—HEeRMEERGEMEBEBRETH
EPR - HAEREER BHARERE
REERBE-BHAZHREN(ELE
) mzBEEZE)BLEHEEH
BES—HEREEZGBIRKERSR
BEAZZEEAEMG  AEREE
S-HEREESNERERELRE
& 18 -

BMEBBEAURETINIR: 2828 —4A
BBABHEARMBRM  BHIBR
MEHAE  WEF AR ERETTEAM
MBEMR BEABEHBELRGSR
RIS REHRMEATE - PINEED
AR RAREERREED -

RERREYHRETNS  BESEIR
BEEREEERENEERBERNE
BB ZEFARKBESREABEDAR
EEZAREEBR)BERNENEZR
R AEREETUER mMEESD
BMAEGARARKER - WE—RE
REABBEEINRRERFIHNE G E
TAREBRBRERSRENETEZ
BAERMNE - EBEBEERT  AKE
ANBAERTmSER  BTAZAR
Bt 2RE -

= R EBEERER TR AR - M
R AR BB SRR EREEZ
=M PImEBAZERFRSKZ) 8
ZHEHERZBEBEAELLES RAR
mEm -



Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method. The
cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises design
costs, raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related
production overheads (based on normal operating capacity). It
excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less applicable
variable selling expenses.

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary course of
business. If collection of trade and other receivables is expected in
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business
if longer), they are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less allowance for impairment.

In the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents
include cash in hand, deposits held at call with bank and other
short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three
months or less.

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from
the proceeds.

Trade and other payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business
from suppliers. They are classified as current liabilities if payment
is due within one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of
the business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current
liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.
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The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred
tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated income statement,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the
tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date in the countries where the Company’s subsidiaries operate
and generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on
the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

(b) Deferred income tax
Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. However, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill, the deferred income tax is not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business combination that
at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using
tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply
when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries, except for deferred
income tax liability where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not be reversed in
the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible
temporary differences arising from investments in subsidiaries
only to the extent that it is probable the temporary difference
will reverse in the future and there is sufficient taxable profit
available against which the temporary difference can be utilised.
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(c) Offsetting

()

(i)

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income
taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle
the balances on a net basis.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when
they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the
estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are
not recognised until the time of leave.

Pension obligations

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which
the Group pays fixed contributions into a separate entity. The
Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay
all employees the benefits relating to employee service in the
current and prior periods.

For defined contribution plans, the Group pays contributions
to publicly or privately administered pension insurance plans
on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The Group
has no further payment obligations once the contributions
have been paid. The contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a
reduction in the future payments is available.
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(i)

(iv)

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan, under which the entity receives services
from employees as consideration for equity instruments
(options) of the Group. The fair value of the employee services
received in exchange for the grant of the options is recognised
as an expense. The total amount to be expensed is determined
by reference to the fair value of the options granted, excluding
the impact of any non-market vesting conditions (for example,
profitability, sales growth targets) and non-vesting conditions.
Non-market vesting conditions are included in assumptions
about the number of options that are expected to vest. The
total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which is
the period over which all of the specified vesting conditions
are to be satisfied. At the end of each reporting period, the
entity revises its estimates of the number of options that
are expected to vest based on the non-marketing vesting
conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision of original
estimates, if any, in the consolidated income statement, with
a corresponding adjustment to equity.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal value)
and share premium when the options are exercised.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is
terminated by the Group before the normal retirement date,
or whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in
exchange for these benefits. The Group recognises termination
benefits at the earlier of the following dates: (a) when the
Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits; and
(b) when the entity recognises costs for a restructuring that
is within the scope of HKAS 37 and involves the payment of
termination benefits. In the case of an offer made to encourage
voluntary redundancy, the termination benefits are measured
based on the number of employees expected to accept the
offer. Benefits falling due more than 12 months after the end
of the reporting period are discounted to their present value.

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation
and the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not
recognised for the future operating losses.
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Revenue from the sales of goods is the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for the sales of goods in
the ordinary course of the Group’s activities. It is recognised on
the transfer of risks and rewards of ownership, which generally
coincides with the time when shipment is made. Revenue is shown
net of value-added tax, returns, rebates and discounts and after
eliminating sales within the Group.

Processing income is recognised when services are rendered.

Net gains/(losses) from security trading arise from the disposal
and remeasurement of financial instruments at fair value through
profit or loss and is included in “Revenue”. All transactions related
to securities trading are recorded in the consolidated financial
statements based on trade dates. Accordingly, only those trade
dates falling within the accounting year have been taken into
account.

Dividend income is recognised when the rights to receive payment
is established.

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis, taking
into account the principal amounts outstanding and using the
effective interest method.

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. Payments made under operating leases, net of any
incentives received from the lessor, are charged to the consolidated
income statement on a straight-line basis over the lease period.
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A related party is a person or entity that is related to the Group.

() A person or a close member of that person’s family is related
to the Group if that person:

(1)
@

@)

(i) An

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of the
Company or its parent.

entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies:

(1)

The entity and the Group are members of the same group
(which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of a
group of which the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the reporting entity or an
entity related to the reporting entity. If the reporting entity
is itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are also
related to the reporting entity.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (i).

A person identified in (i)(1) has significant influence over
the entity or is a member of the key management
person.

Dividend distribution to the Company’s equity holders is recognised
as a liability in the Group’s and Company’s financial statements in
the year in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders.
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The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including foreign exchange risk, price risk and interest
rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk
management programme focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Group’s financial performance.

(a) Market risk

(i

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates internationally and has factories and
offices in Hong Kong and Mainland China. Operating
expenses of the Group are primarily denominated in Hong
Kong dollar and Renminbi whereas the Group’s sales are
principally denominated in United States dollar. Thus, the
Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from
the translation of Renminbi to Hong Kong dollar.

In the opinion of the directors, the Hong Kong dollar is
reasonably stable against the United States dollar under
the Linked Exchange Rate System, and accordingly, no
sensitivity analysis with respect to the United States dollar
is performed.

The Group has foreign operations, whose net assets
expose the Group to foreign currency translation risks.

As at 31 December 2014, if Hong Kong dollar had
strengthened/weakened by 5% (2013: 5%) against
Renminbi with all other variables held constant, the
Group’s net assets at the year end would have been
HK$3,470,000/HK$3,470,000 (2013: HK$2,456,000/
HK$2,456,000) lower/higher, respectively, mainly as
a result of foreign currency translation differences on
translation of the foreign operation in Mainland China.

The management closely monitors the fluctuations of
these and other currencies and may consider entering into
foreign forward exchange contracts from time to time so
as to better manage these foreign exchange exposures,
when required. Currently it does not do so.
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(a) Market risk (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity securities price risk
because of equity investments held by the Group and
classified on the consolidated balance sheet as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss (Note 22). The
Group is not exposed to commaodity price risk. To manage
its price risk arising from investments in equity securities,
the Group diversifies its portfolio, in accordance with the
limits set by the Group.

The Group’s equity investments for trading purpose are
publicly traded or quoted in Hong Kong.

At 31 December 2014, if the listed price, quoted price
or fair value of each equity investment classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss had
appreciated/depreciated by 10%, with all other variables
held constant, the Group’s loss for the year would have
been HK$11,369,000 lower/higher, mainly as a result of
unrealised gains/losses on equity securities classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

Interest rate risk

The Group has floating rate interest-bearing bank
deposits. However, the Group’s income and operating
cash flows are substantially independent of changes in
market interest rates. At 31 December 2014, if interest
rates on the interest-bearing bank deposits had been
10 basis points (2013: 10 basis points) higher/lower with
all other variables held constant, the Group’s loss for
the year would have been HK$11,000/HK$11,000 (2013:
HK$12,000/HK$12,000) lower/higher, respectively, mainly
as a result of higher/lower interest incomes on floating
rate bank deposits.
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(b) Credit risk

Credit risk of the Group mainly arises from cash and cash
equivalents, deposits and security investments with banks
and financial institutions, as well as credit exposures to
customers such as trade receivables. The carrying amount of
these balances in the balance sheet represents the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its financial
assets.

The Group’s bank deposits are placed with banks and financial
institutions  which are highly reputable with multinational
presences. Investment transactions are executed with financial
institutions with sound credit ratings and the Group does not
expect any significant counterparty risk. Management does
not expect any losses from non-performance by these banks
and financial institutions as they have no default history in the
past.

Debtors of the Group may be affected by the unfavorable
economic conditions and the lower liquidity situation, which
could in turn impact their ability to repay the amounts
owed. Deteriorating operating conditions for debtors may
also have an impact on management’s cash flow forecasts
and assessment of the impairment of receivables. To the
extent that information is available, management has properly
reflected revised estimate of expected future cash flows in
their impairment assessments.

The credit quality of the customers is assessed based on
their financial position, past experience and other factors. The
Group has policies in place to ensure that sales of products
are made to customers with appropriate credit histories.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had a concentration of
credit risk given that the top 5 customers accounted for 99%
(2013: 100%) of the Group’s total year end trade receivable
balance. However, the Group does not consider that the credit
risk in relation to these customers is significant because these
customers are financially healthy and have no history of default
in recent years.

The Group performs periodic credit evaluations of its
customers. The Group’s historical experience in collection of
trade and other receivables is good and management is of
the opinion that provision for uncollectible receivables is not
necessary as at 31 December 2014 and 2013.
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(c) Liquidity risk (c)

The Group meets its day to day working capital requirements,
capital expenditure and financial obligations through cash
inflow from operating activities and issue of new shares.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities into
relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period
at the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date.
The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months
equal their carrying balances, as the impact of discounting is
not significant.

Trade and other payables, B 5 & H R FRIE

at 31 December 2014 R-FE—E+=-A=+—H
Trade and other payables, B & H A FRIE

at 31 December 2013 RZZE—=F+=ZA=+—H
Other payables and accruals, HEmENRBERETER

at 31 December 2014 RZZT—mF+ZRA=+T—H
Other payables and accruals, HEMmENRERETER -

at 31 December 2013 WZZE—=F+=ZA=+—H

RBEZEE

AEEBBREZ2RHZHEATRA
BEBTHRENEEEEESH
T BARXRMBEE -

TROMAKEZEREE B
HEERZAODHA Z R &R 8
RBHEM DA ETON - T
REB R RANARBARSIR
B mRBRZFETK B E
ToEARNB R EHHRESENERER
HEE -

Group

FEHEH
Within 1 year Total
—£R “at
HK$°000 HK$°000
FERT FERT
34,767 34,767
33,729 33,729

Company

AATF
Within 1 year Total
—£R @zt
HK$°000 HK$’000
TFET TFET
714 714
1,549 1,549



The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt
is calculated as total borrowings less cash and cash equivalents.
Total capital is “capital and reserves attributable to the Company’s
equity holders” as shown in the consolidated balance sheet. As at
31 December 2014 and 2013, the Group had no bank borrowings
and thus the gearing ratios at both financial year ends were not
applicable.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial instruments carried
at fair value as at 31 December 2014 by level of the inputs to
valuation techniques used to measure fair value. Such inputs are
categorised into three levels within a fair value hierarchy as follows:

e Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities (level 1).

e Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is,
as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

e Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3).

Assets &
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss %
— Trading securities -

At 31 December 2013, no financial instruments were held by the
Group.
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Financial instruments in level 1

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is
based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date. A market
is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly
available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing
service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual
and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length
basis. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by
the Group is the current bid price. These instruments are included
in level 1.

The carrying values of the Group’s other financial assets, which
are trade and other receivables, bank deposits and cash and
cash equivalents and financial liabilities, which are trade and other
payables, and the Company’s financial assets, which are other
receivables and cash and cash equivalents and financial liabilities,
which is other payables, approximate to their fair values due to
their short maturities.

Financial instruments in level 2

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in
an active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives)
is determined by using valuation techniques. These valuation
techniques maximise the use of observable market data where it is
available and rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates.
If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are
observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable
market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

The Group’s buildings classified under properties, plant and
equipment are carried at fair value at reporting period end. Details
of the fair value measurement of these land and buildings are
disclosed in Note 15.
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Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed
below.

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong and
Mainland China. Significant judgement is required in determining
the provision for income taxes. The Group recognises liabilities
for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the current and deferred income tax
assets and liabilities in the period in which such determination is
made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary differences
are recognised as the management of the Group considers it
is probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised. Where
the expectations are different from the original estimates, such
differences will impact the recognition of deferred tax assets in the
period in which such estimates have been changed.

The Group writes down inventories to net realisable value based
on an assessment of the realisability of inventories. Write-downs on
inventories are recorded where events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the balances may not be realised. The identification
of write-downs requires the use of judgment and estimates. Where
the expectations are different from the original estimates, such
differences will impact the carrying value of inventories in the period
in which such estimates have been changed.

The Group makes provision for impairment of receivables based
on an assessment of the recoverability of the receivables.
Provisions are applied to receivables where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the balances may not be collectible.
The identification of impairment of receivables requires the use of
judgment and estimate. Management uses the repayment history
of the customers to assess the credit quality of the receivables.
Where the expectations are different from the original estimates,
such differences will impact the carrying value of receivables in
the period in which such estimates have been changed.
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The management of the Group determines the estimated useful
lives, residual values and related depreciation charges for its
property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based on the
historical experience of the actual useful lives of property, plant
and equipment of similar nature and functions. The management
of the Group will increase the depreciation charge where useful
lives are less than previously estimated lives, it will write-off or
write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have
been abandoned or sold. Actual economic lives may differ from
estimated useful lives; actual residual values may differ from
estimated residual values. Periodic review could result in a change
in depreciable lives and residual values and therefore depreciation
expense in the future period.

The Group assesses annually whether property, plant and
equipment and land use rights exhibit any indications of
impairment. The recoverable amounts, if required, are determined
based on value-in-use calculations or market valuations. These
calculations require the use of judgment and estimates. The
management’s assessment on impairment of property, plant and
equipment is disclosed in Note 15.

Management judgement is required in the area of asset impairment
particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event has occurred that
may indicate that the related asset value may not be recoverable;
(i) whether the carrying value of an asset can be supported by
the recoverable amount, being the higher of fair value less costs
to dispose or net present value of future cash flows which are
estimated based upon the continued use of the asset in the
business; and (i) the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in
preparing cash flow projections including whether these cash flow
projections are discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing the
assumptions selected by management in assessing impairment,
including the discount rates, could materially affect the net present
value used in the impairment test and as a result affect the Group’s
financial position and results of operations. If there is a significant
adverse change in the projected performance and resulting future
cash flow projections, it may be necessary to take an impairment
charge to the consolidated income statement.

Buildings in properties, plant and equipment, comprise mainly
factories and offices, are shown at fair values determined by
directors based on valuations performed by external independent
valuers on an annual basis. In arriving at the valuations, significant
judgement, assumptions and economic estimates have to be made.
The key assumptions applied in the fair value measurement of the
buildings are disclosed in Note 15.
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Pursuant to an announcement made by the Company on 20 November
2013, the Group has adopted securities investment as one of its
principal business activities. During the year, the Group is principally
engaged in garment manufacturing and trading and securities
investment.

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the board of directors.

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the Board of
Directors of the Company. Management has determined the operating
segments based on the reports reviewed by the chief operating
decision-maker that are used to assess performance and allocate
resources. The chief operating decision-maker considers the business
principally from the operations nature, with two segments identified:
garment manufacturing and trading segment and securities investment
segment.

The board of directors assesses the performance of the operating
segments based on a measure of adjusted operating results. This
measurement basis includes results of the operating segments before
corporate administrative expenses, finance income and tax, but
excludes material gain or loss which is capital in nature or non-recurring
nature.
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ELEBRRERBARARRNEEE - B
BEDBELKTIZEERAREEN RS
(ARTFRERBRROEER BETEEDH -
Ig%iiﬁik*%Ixﬁé SEMEEEER

Wk mED D RRBEREH D HIAR
nx%%X EoEp o

SEERBARREEEE BT HEE
SHZEH o T EEEBERI D ETR
B RERARBUBR 2 EEH BEE
BT BiEBASEERIEH T2 EAK
2 i 9E -

Revenue recognised during the year is as follows: REANBRZW DT :
2014 2013
—F—-MmE —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHE T
Garment manufacturing and trading: RRHEERES :
Sale of garment products §# 5 A AKX EE @ 112,396 129,598
Processing income T A 22,558 16,240
134,954 145,838
Securities investment: BHEERE
Fair value (loss)/gain on financial assets at fair value AR B AEBZEZ L/
through profit or loss BEARBEER), W
— realised — BE#R (2,274) —
— unrealised — REH 19,203 -
Dividend income from listed equity securities gBLEm Hﬁ$"*%2ﬁ§ B A 1,293 —
18,222 -
153,176 145,838
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The segment information for the year ended and as at 31 December
2014 by business segment is as follows:

Revenue

Reportable segment results
Other gains — net

Corporate administrative expenses

Operating loss
Finance income

Loss before income tax

Income tax expense

Loss for the year

Reportable segment assets
Unallocated corporate assets

Total assets

Reportable segment liabilities
Unallocated corporate liabilities

Total liabilities

B P15 50 A1 S 4R
P15 5% B 32

FEER

5 =)
="
N o
P
ol

o ofF

BERR-Z-—ME+-A=+—HILFE
AEBEREBDAE D Z

Garment
manufacturing
and trading
segment

B BRE
RE 55
HK$’000

FERT

134,954

(9,658)

Garment
manufacturing
and trading
segment
BRHE
RESTEH
HK$’000
FET

145,333

36,009

Securities
investment
segment

BHBED

HK$’000
FHER

18,222

11,690

Securities
investment
segment

EHERETER
HK$’000
FERT

139,263

3,702

PERIT :

Total
st
HK$’000
TFET

153,176

2,032
540
(16,806)

(14,234)
991

(13,243)
(1,481)

(14,724)

Total
st
HK$°000
TERT

284,596
72,507

357,103

39,711
3,296

43,007



The segment information for the year ended and as at 31 December
2013 by business segment is as follows:

Revenue U 25

Reportable segment results AMmEDMES
Other gains — net Hitlzm — F58
Corporate administrative expenses TETHEAX
Operating loss LEEE

Finance income RN PN

Loss before income tax FRATETRIEE
Income tax expense FiEMAx

Loss for the year FEEE

Prior to the announcement made by the Company on 20 November
2013, through which securities investment was identified as one of the
Group’s principal business activities, the Group recognised a gain on
disposal of listed equity securities of HK$1,065,000 in “Other gains —
net” during the year ended 31 December 2013.

Reportable segment assets AmESMEE
Unallocated corporate assets TeEDEE L EEE
Total assets BmEE

Reportable segment liabilities AREDHEaE
Unallocated corporate liabilities Teen#E s EARE
Total liabilities Baff

BERR-Z—=F+-A=+—HBIFE

AEEREBDAE D ZDE

Garment
manufacturing
and trading
segment

PR R B3
RB5H
HK$’'000
FET

145,838

(9,701)

Securities
investment
segment

HK$’000
TETT

(153)

PERIT :

Total
#Et
HK$’'000
FAT

145,838

(9,854)
1,046
(22,005)

(30,813)
753

(30,060)
(156)

(30,216)

RATFEBAN_E—=+—A-_+tEEY
AHEPELFRERAEEER —HEEE
B HE_T—=F+-A=+—HIEF
B AEBERIHMIKRZE — FRINERD
& E IR AR B 5 2 W 251,065,000 7T °

Garment
manufacturing
and trading
segment

KB 55 a8
HK$'000
TAET

141,983

37,648

Securities
investment
segment

BHFREDH
HK$’000
T

Total

st
HK$’'000
FHT

141,983
91,137

233,120

37,648
2,040

39,688
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Revenues of approximately HK$76,968,000 (2013: HK$77,958,000),
HK$32,917,000 (2013: HK$48,061,000) and HK$21,536,000 (2013:
HK$16,240,000) were derived from the top three (2013: three) external
garment manufacturing customers, respectively.

The following table sets out information about the geographical
location of the Group’s revenue and non-current assets. In presenting
the geographical information, segment revenue is based on the
geographical location of external customers and segment non-current
assets are based on the geographical location of the assets.

#776,968,00038 7T (= & — = 4 : 77,958,000
B JT) 32,917,000 (= T — = F:
48,061,0007% JT) }21,536,000/8 7T (= & —
=4F 116,240,000 7T) 2 Wm Ty A RIRE =
ZE-ZF Z)RIIMPERKRBIETP -

TREIEHEAEBERARERBDEE 2
BUEEN 27 MEERNE  HE ks
TIERIINBEP ZMIBMAE - Mo HIERSD
BEANEREEZWEMNE -

Revenue Non-current assets
W 25 ERBEE
2014 2013 2014 2013
—F—-mE —T—=F —F—mE —T—=
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT FETT TET FAET
United States of America ES 50,762 47,691 - —
Mainland China R K 56,225 64,331 73,411 74,531
Europe B 14,726 21,054 - —
Hong Kong B 21,179 3,949 9204 616
Rest of World 5 H A b @ 10,284 8,813 - —
153,176 145,838 74,315 75,147
2014 2013
—E—ME —ET—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT FET

Gain on disposal of listed equity securities, net of loss Hi & FHIARE S 2 U2k

(Note) MR 1B (P )
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RHEAR Z
Gain/(loss) on disposal of properties, plant and HEME BMERZEZ
equipment Wz (E18)
Total other gains — net Hm@lzs — F88
Note: It represents the gain recognised during the year ended 31

December 2013 prior to the announcement made on 20
November 2013 in relation to the identification of securities
investment as one of the Group’s principal business activities.

- 1,065
358 -
182 19)
540 1,046

MsE: HEER-Z-—=F+-A-+H%
HEHERAESRERAEEBES
—HRIBEZBEH2AMA  BE
TE-=FFT-_A=t+—-HIFE
P 2 W e o



Operating loss is stated after crediting and charging the following: KEEBEBREFARNBRTISERZIMT:

2014 2013
—E-mEF —E—=
HK$’000 HK$’000
TET FHET
Raw materials used 2 B R 48,102 60,843
Changes in inventories of finished goods and work in Bk @ R¥ 8K B 217 E

progress 2 (1,401) (2,241)
Depreciation of properties, plant and equipment (Note #7% - B MR 2 T &

15) (Hft 5£15) 4,711 4,642
Amortisation of land use rights (Note 16) + 0 R 2 B8 (I 5E16) 364 359
Employee benefit expense (excluding directors’ EERINAZ(TEREESEHE)

emoluments) (Note 13) (P 5£13) 66,963 67,499
Directors’ emoluments E N 6,704 8,407
Operating lease rentals — land and buildings KERERE — THLRETF 1,918 1,788
Auditors’ remuneration % EE B & 1,233 1,162
Securities management and performance fees BHEBRRAER 2,884 —
Securities brokerage and transaction fees BHR&EEZH5ER 804 48
Others i 35,668 35,190
Total cost of sales, selling expenses and administrative 5 & KA « $§ S X &

expenses THRAX 8% 167,950 177,697

2014 2013

—E-mE —F—=
HK$’000 HK$’000
TFET FHET
Finance income on short-term bank deposits RHRITFRZBERA 991 753
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2013: BEBFERIBRBFAMEERBORR - 12
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year. The operation Fi%16.5% (Z T — =4 : 16.5%) T e B -
in Mainland China is subject to PRC corporate income tax at the rate HEZZ—NF+_A=+—HLFE #

of 25% for the year ended 31 December 2014 (2013: 25%).

BAMPECEMER

BN B 5 R 12 26% B K (—F — =5 : 26%)
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The amount of income tax charged to the consolidated

statement represents:

(Over)/under-provision in prior years
— Hong Kong profits tax
— Overseas profits tax

Deferred income tax (Note 25)

Income tax expense

income

HEFARABRKRZAEHESER

2014
—F-mE
HK$’000
FET

DNEFE GRRERE),BETR

— BAENBH
— BN
i 3T P45 B¢ (Y 5E25)

A5 B %

The tax on the Group’s loss before income tax differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average tax rate

applicable to profits of the consolidated entities:

Loss before income tax

Tax calculated at domestic tax rates applicable to
profits in the respective countries

Income not subject to tax
Expenses not deductible for tax
Unrecognised tax losses
Under-provision in prior years

FiT 15 75 31 /&5 18

PREBIR 2 42 & i
AR EGEZRA
EARB ZWA
AEHHZ F X
RHERTLIA KB
NEFERENR

The loss attributable to equity holders of the Company is dealt with
in the financial statements of the Company to the extent of a loss of

HK$11,861,000 (2013: loss of HK$26,899,000).

For the purpose of calculating basic and diluted loss per share, the
weighted average number of ordinary shares was adjusted to take
into account the effects arising from rights issue undertaken by the
Company on 13 February 2014 and the exercise of share options made
during the year. Loss per share for the previous financial year had been

restated to reflect the rights issue.

1,481

1,481

(305)
461

156

AEERABHRABEZHEBEIREFER L
EEREMNERZMETFOREMEEZE

fiako

2014
—E-mE
HK$’000
FHERT

(13,243)

(3,080)
(370)
3,103
1,828

1,481

2013
—E—=%F
HK$'000
FAT

(30,060)

(5,944)
(330)
4,405
1,869
156

156

AARRNBMBEHREZARNFERFTEAR
15518 A E54811,861,0008 T (— T — =4 :

26,899,000/ 7T) °

RAESREAREEHE  METHER
R BEARAARR-_E—NF-_A+=H
BT ZHBERFERNTERBRERSIEZZE
MmFPARE  E-EFRFENEREED

EH AR AR -



Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing the loss attributable to BREAEBDBEARAAEZFHEAAR

equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of HBERNFRABEITE BRI Z INEFE
ordinary shares in issue during the year. The Company has only one HEHE - ARBIRE—BBTEHEEL R
category of dilutive potential ordinary shares: share options. % - BE AR A o
As the dilutive potential ordinary shares of the Company would result ARRZBEHSEERRAEE_ZT—WN
in an anti-dilution of loss per share for the year ended 31 December F+ZA=Z+ - HLEFEANBEHESRERE
2014 (2013: had no dilutive effect), the diluted loss per share equals REB(ZZE—=F:E2HExE) WER
the basic loss per share. BEEBEHRERERELNESSE -
2014 2013
—F—MmEF e
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FH& T
(Restated)
(BE5))
Loss attributable to equity holders of the Company ZANARIEZEFE A EIHEIE (14,724) (30,216)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue %17 & i I% A% 2 2 hnkE 15 &
(thousands) (FR) 775,415 543,898
Basic and diluted loss per share ERERREEES
(HK cents per share) (FR& AL (1.90) (5.56)
The Company has not declared any dividends for the years ended 31 ARBTERBE-ZTE—NFR-_T—=F
December 2014 and 2013. TZRE=EtT-HLEFEZRE -
2014 2013
—FT—WmE —ZT—=F
HK$’°000 HK$’000
FHERT FHET
Wages and salaries Haekie 61,975 62,488
Share options expense granted to employees KRB ZERERS
(Note 28) (Fff 5 28) 104 255
Pension costs BRSO 4,884 4,756
66,963 67,499
No forfeited contributions to the mandatory provident fund scheme (the FRLEB A RS G IEAE S E (58
“MPF Scheme”) were utilised during the year (2013: Nil). BeHEDHRCCE—=F:8)-
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There was no contribution payable in relation to the MPF Scheme at
the year end (2013: Nil).

The Group operates/participates in the following pension and post
retirement plans:

()  The MPF Scheme for employees in Hong Kong, under which the
Group and its employee each make a monthly contribution to the
scheme at 5% of the qualifying earnings of the employee, subject
to a monthly cap of HK$1,500.

(i) The Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China contribute
approximately 10% of the basic salaries of their employees to
retirement schemes operated by municipal governments. Other
than the mandatory contributions, the Group has no further
obligations for the actual pension payments or any post retirement
benefits. The retirement schemes are responsible for the entire
pension obligations payable to retired employees. In addition,
according to the labor law in Mainland China, the employer
is required to pay retirement benefits to the employees when
employment is terminated by the employer before the normal
retirement date.

The remuneration of each director for the year ended 31 December
2014 is set out below:

Fees

Name of Director EENSE e

HK$°000

FTET

Mr Li Haifeng FEEEE 120

Mr Lee Sheng Kuang, James THALE 120
Mr Huang Xuxian, Flynn BERHLE

(resigned on 7 June 2014) (RZZE—NEF A A+HET) 52

Mr Tang Chak Lam, Charlie HEREE 120

Mr Chen Zhongfa [k gt 120

Mr Yau Wing Yiu BBk B 5 4 240

Mr Tong Tang, Joseph BEEE 120

892

88

A

NERTEEMBESTE 2 BN HR(Z
—ZFfE)

BMET/2ELATRKRE RRKEF

B 34
*

REBREMRZBEESFERT K
SERERERHAREEAERAL
Z5% A BIEE AER - S AHRE
LR &1,500/ 7T ©

(i) AEBRPEAEZIBLARIZEESR
A Hr 2 #910%[7) 1 U 8% 37 2 R R EH 3
TR Z R - Broa bl RN - AR E
W H B RR S SRR IR R ) 2 7
- BT RAGIEEZHEMNTERK
BB ZRIKREAYE - JtIh - WBHE K
BEZ8EE  EXTENEEERRKA
Hp®IEERESR - AIARREXNE
SR

o

HE-ZT—NF+-_A=1+—HBLFE
BESFZMEEMT

Employer’s
contribution
Other to the MPF

Salary benefits Scheme Total
MEaHE

i Hit & X3 @t

HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$000  HK$’000

TER TER TER TER

920 153 17 1,210

539 2,348 - 3,007

289 79 8 428

1,326 44 17 1,507

- 29 - 149

- 43 - 283

- - - 120

3,074 2,696 42 6,704



The remuneration of each director for the year ended 31 December

2013 is set out below:

Name of Director

Mr Li Haifeng

Mr Lee Sheng Kuang, James
Mr Huang Xuxian, Flynn

Mr Tang Chak Lam, Charlie

Mr Xiao Yong
(resigned on 20 May 2013)

Mr Chen Zhongfa
Mr Yau Wing Yiu
Mr Tong Tang, Joseph
(appointed on 4 July 2013)
Mr Zhang Feng
(resigned on 4 July 2013)

BEMA

FEM L

FHA L

FRHAL

WERAE

WEELE
(R-2-=£#RA-+AE)

Ra%ELE

Bk R

EERA
(R=B—ZF+BWARESR)

Rk
(R-B-Z£L AMARH)

Fees

ik
HK$'000
TEL

120
120
120
120

46
120
190

59

61

956

Other benefits include leave pay, share option benefits and housing

allowances.

During the year, no director has waived any emoluments (2013:

Nil).

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group include three (2013: four) directors whose emoluments are
reflected in the analysis presented above. The emoluments payable
to the remaining two (2013: one) individual during the year are as

follows:

Basic salaries, housing allowances, other
allowances and benefits-in-kind

Contributions to the MPF Scheme

BEE#He BEEH-
Hi R R EYH S
BB E R

BE-_2—=F+-A=+—-B81FE

BEEEZMEEHOT

Employer’s

contribution

Other to the MPF

Salary benefits Scheme
wETEE

i Hip @A BEIHX
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL THEL TET
957 392 15
557 2,537 -
688 294 15
1,378 98 15
108 97 6

— 98 —

- 147 -

— 49 —
3,688 3,712 51

Total

st
HK$'000
TRT

1,484
3,214
1117
1,611

257
218
337

59

110

8,407

HibhiRFemE#H KR - BRERNRE

284 -

RER BEEERETAMS(=F

—=FE) -

rEEZIEESHFHALTRE=R(Z
T-=F OREF REZMECOR
LR - FRENTHRTMA
(CZ—=F:—B) ALz T:

2014
—F-mE
HK$’000
FHERT

1,339
34

1,373

2013

—E—=fF

HK$’000
TET

27
15

742
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} & 3R 3% [ 5+

14 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE — DIRECTORS’ AND 14 EERAHX - EERERER
SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued) ABEZEE ()
(b) Five highest paid individuals (Continued) b) AEREHMAL(E)
The emoluments fell within the following bands: Me&dBEMT:
Number of individuals
A8
2014 2013
—ET—WmE —ZT—=
Emolument bands & &
HK$500,000-HK$999,999 500,0007% 7T -999,9997% 7T 2 1
15 PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15 V% BER®R
Group
AEE
Furniture,
office
Leasehold ~ Plant and  equipment and
Buildings improvements  machinery ~ motor vehicles Total
LN
BF HERE BERER SZERAE @i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAEL TET TET FTET FTET
At 1 January 2013 R-E—=%—-f—H
Cost or valuation AL E 51,139 27,374 21,826 30,742 131,081
Accumulated depreciation and ZEMERRE
impairment - (24,226) (18,478) (29,181) (71,885)
Net book amount REFE 51,139 3,148 3,348 1,561 59,196
Year ended 31 December 2013 BE-_Z-Z#+_-A4
=t+-HLEEE
Opening net book amount BINERFE 51,139 3,148 3,348 1,561 59,196
Additions NE - 76 85 1,147 1,308
Disposals HE - - - (114) (114)
Depreciation nE (3,222) (99) (705) (616) (4,642)
Revaluation surplus EfHAH 2,861 - - - 2,861
Currency translation differences ERESR 376 39 36 18 469
Closing net book amount BREEFE 51,154 3,164 2,764 1,996 59,078
At 31 December 2013 ZE-=F+ZA=1+-H
Cost or valuation ﬁX$ZJZ BE 51,154 27,800 22178 31,336 132,468
Accumulated depreciation and ZEMERRE
impairment - (24636 (19,414) (29,3400 (73,390)
Net book amount REFE 51,154 3,164 2,764 1,996 59,078
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Group

x5
Furniture,
office
Leasehold Plant and equipment and
Buildings improvements machinery motor vehicles Total
Rt WAE
gy HEXE HERBE BERRE @it
HK$°000 HK$000  HK$'000 HK$000  HK$’000
TER TER T#ER TER TER
Year ended 31 December 2014 HE-T-IUF
TZRA=T—ALFE
Opening net book amount HONEEFE 51,154 3,164 2,764 1,996 59,078
Additions NE - - 51 1,053 1,104
Disposals & - - - (62 (62)
Depreciation neE (3,458) (61) (604) (588) (4,711)
Revaluation surplus BHEBH 3,201 - - - 3,201
Closing net book amount HRE®FE 50,897 3,103 2,211 2,399 58,610
At 31 December 2014 RZZE-WE+ZA=+—H
Cost or valuation ARG E 50,897 27,800 22,217 31,498 132,412
Accumulated depreciation and 2R MERRE
impairment - (24,697) (20,006) (29,099) (73,802)
Net book amount REFE 50,897 3,103 2,211 2,399 58,610
Depreciation of HK$581,000 (2013: HK$696,000) has been expensed to FrEE DB #HE K AR $5581,000% 7T (=
cost of goods sold, HK$58,000 (2013: HK$51,000) has been expensed T —=%:696,000/8 7T) - 1 85 & B 2 X 14
to selling expenses; and HK$4,072,000 (2013: HK$3,895,000) has been 58,000/ 7T (ZZ — =4 : 51,000/ 7T) & i
expensed to administrative expenses. 1T BB 2 37 $54,072,0008 T (— T — =4
3,895,000/ 7T
If buildings were stated on the historical cost basis, the amounts would WMEFHIREELRAVE HESBEOT:
be as follows:
2014 2013
—E—MNE —E—=%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT FET
Cost R AR 41,546 41,546
Accumulated depreciation - (13,727) (11,860)
Net book amount REFE 27,819 29,686
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The analysis of the cost or valuation at 31 December 2014 of the above
assets is as follows:

Buildings

i £
HK$'000
FiEL

B A -
BT -NEMHE 50,897

At cost
At 2014 valuation

50,897

The analysis of the cost or valuation at 31 December 2013 of the above
assets is as follows:

Buildings

BT

HK$'000

TET

At cost TN -

At 2013 valuation BT =Ff@E 51,154

51,154

Net book value of buildings is analysed as follows:
Outside Hong Kong, held on leases of between REBAINEERL
10 to 50 years N F102504F

The Group’s properties were revalued at 31 December 2014 by Vigers
Appraisal and Consulting Limited, an independent professionally
qualified valuer who holds a recognised relevant professional
qualification and has recent experience in the locations and segments
of the properties valued. For all buildings, their current use equates to
the highest and best use.

LREERE-ME T A=+ B2
ASAEED T

Furniture,
office
Leasehold Plant and equipment and
improvements machinery motor vehicles Total
R HWAE
HEXE BEREE HRERRE @i
HK$000  HK$'000 HK$000  HK$’000
TER TER TER TER
27,800 22,217 31,498 81,515
- - - 50,897
217,800 22,217 31,498 132,412
TMEER_T—=F+ZA=+—HZK
REfEBEATWT -
Furniture,
office
Leasehold  Plant and  equipment and
improvements  machinery ~ motor vehicles Total
L N
HERE BRERES FERA=E @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET
27,800 22,178 31,336 81,314
- - - 51,154
27,800 22,178 31,336 132,468
BF2E@mFESTET
2014 2013
—E—-mE —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FERT FET
50,897 51,154

AEEZMEER T -—OF+-A=+—
FRBTEEABRMEMEE T EEF G
BEBRAREHGE ZEHEMSHER
FIZHBEXER  BUMMGEYE 22
REFSHEEORER - HRMERTME -
BERZERAENERS REEREM -



The Group’s finance department includes a team that review the
valuations performed by the independent valuer for financial reporting
purposes. This team reports directly to the board of directors.
Discussions of valuation processes and results are held between the
valuation team and valuer annually.

The revaluation surplus net of applicable deferred income taxes was
credited to fixed assets revaluation reserve in shareholders’ equity.

Valuations were made with reference to depreciated replacement cost
approach based on significant unobservable inputs.

The following table analyses the buildings carried at fair value, by
valuation method.

AEBMPBARE—ENE  ZERUBR
SEOME B AEM 2 HEETR - Uk
NEERRAEEGER - HE/)EEGER
BFENRMEEMENEBER

ERBHRHRERELEFRSH AR RE
mP 2z BElEEEEMGRHE -

[MEDZEFERTRAE - EREEKRT
AERzZBABEMMEL -

TRUBEESTEAARBEIRZET -

Fair value measurements at 31 December 2014 using

R-ZF-—NE+-A=Z+—HZAREFEMAZESH

Quoted prices in Significant other

Significant

active markets for observable unobservable

identical assets inputs inputs

HEEERXE HEXTHZE EXFUHE

ERETIBZH®E ZHAEH ZEANEH

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

(E—%8) (BZHR) (B=8)

HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000

TFHET TFET TFET
Recurring fair value measurements  &E&E U QXA B E
— Offices and factory buildings held — RAHFE KEEE
in Mainland China ZHRNER

B EEF - - 50,897

The recurring fair value measurements for buildings are included in
level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. The Group’s policy is to recognise
transfers into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the
date of the event or change in circumstances that caused the transfer.
There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year.

The movement of buildings stated at fair value using significant
unobservable inputs (level 3) is as follows:

At 1 January ®—A—8

Depreciation e

Net gains from fair value adjustment ARERAEEE 2 FWE
Currency translation differences b 5 ZE &

At 31 December R+=A=+—H

BFZEFUEDAEFEREERAAES
ME=ZFzAN - AEEABRRRNERER 2
EMELERBERARLCER  BREIAES
RMZBAREY - FRE—K F_ARF
=Rz TR A e

BEREATABRZBAGH (=R
EXARERIIZBTRBMT :

Buildings
¥
2014 2013
—T-lmE —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET F#& T
51,154 51,139
(3,458) (8,222)
3,201 2,861
= 376
50,897 51,154
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In other comprehensive income, fair value gain
equipment, net of tax comprise:

of properties, plant and

nEK R

Net gains from fair value adjustment ARERAEEE 2 )FWE
Deferred tax (Note 25) i SE T8 (P 5E25)
Total fair value gains for the year included in other  FFAEHME2ER A ZF R

comprehensive income, net of tax

The details of significant unobservable inputs are as follows:

Unobservable inputs

FOBEZHANEH

Construction costs per square meter

— Based on the type of building structure (steel structure/
reinforced concrete structure) and taking into account
market data on current construction costs for similar
properties located in nearby cities

— RIBEEFEBERGEEE 0 RE L &R Wik
LRI T 2 UM EBRTEER R 25 E R

Economic life of buildings
BFZRES®

— Taking into account the estimated useful life of buildings
depending on the building structure (steel structure/
reinforced concrete structure)

— ARBEBEEFEBRAMERE HHRELEB Z
BF M AEAFY

There were no changes to the valuation techniques during the year.

D EBUK S - 5B

Range of unobservable
inputs

FOBRECHANEHZEE

RMB903 per square meter for
steel structure and RMB1,398
per square meter for reinforced
concrete structure

s RE T HRARKEST
i RE T HEBRETARAR
#1,3987C

40 years for steel structure and
50 years for reinforced concrete
structure

4518 R404F - MARE R L4 E
AB50F

REMEEEARN WX BELREREBZR

MBEMIBERE:

2014 2013
—E—0E T4
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHBT
3,201 2,861
(800) (715)

2,401 2,146

EATABERZBABHNZHEBET:

Relationship of unobservable
inputs to fair value
FOUBHEZEANER

B2\ 7t (B Z FA 1%

The higher the construction cost
per square meter, the higher the
fair value

B

ARE

The longer the useful life, the
higher the fair value

AERFHEE  AAERS

FARABERMHEZLE -

WEEFRPFRBTFEHRRE  BNSRE

When any indicators of impairment are identified, property, plant
and equipment are reviewed for impairment based on each cash
generating unit. The cash generating unit is individual manufacturing
plant. Since the Group’s manufacturing plant in Mainland China has
been continuously making losses, management has carried out an
impairment assessment by comparing the carrying value of the plant
to its recoverable amount, which is based on value-in-use.

EEBEUEHYE BEERREBZRE R
SELFURERNRERE - ARAEEN
RBIRRE 2EREHERSER  RE
2 ERIEEBEEREEZ REERE LK
O & FEHETTH 8 - FEAEITRER M -



For the plant’s estimated recoverable amount as of 31 December 2014,
the value-in-use calculation uses pre-tax cash flow projections based
on financial budgets and projections approved by management with
an assumption that the related fixed assets will be disposed of at the
end of the forecast period. The assumed growth beyond the fourth
year reflects the estimated growth rate not exceeding the long-term
average growth rate for the business in which the plant operates. Other
key assumptions applied in the impairment test include the expected
improvement in gross profit margin, production costs and related
expenses. Management determined these key assumptions based on
past performance and its expectations on market development. A pre-
tax rate of 11% that reflects specific risks related to the plant was
adopted as the discount rate.

Based on the results of management’s impairment assessment, no
impairment loss was recognised in the consolidated income statement
for the year ended 31 December 2014 (2013: no impairment loss was
recognised in the consolidated income statement).

For the estimated recoverable amount of the plant as of 31 December
2014, a five percentage point increase or decrease in estimated growth
in sales in the first four years, with all other variables held constant,
would result in a 50% and 58% increase or decrease in the estimated
recoverable amount of the plant respectively. A one percentage point
increase or decrease in gross profit margin, with all other variables
held constant, would result in a 28% and 36% increase or decrease
in the estimated recoverable amount of the plant respectively. A one
percentage point increase or decrease in the discount rate, with all other
variables held constant, would result in a 12% and 15% decrease or
increase in the estimated recoverable amount of the plant, respectively.

BBER-_ZT—NF+_A=+—HzMHs
e - FHAEBEFEEDENBRRME
FAEEAEMNTBANRHEBREE  ARBE
EREE VB EERTEREE 2FATH
SRETEA - FHFR 2BRIGRREGR
BEETNBRZBMEEEEBT 2 R THE
RE - AhERANBEIRZ TERERE
EFE - EERAREERS 2BEHRE -
EEERBEACRRLEYMSERE 2
%?Ek FERR RUVEZBEE@E
R 5E B B 2 B AT A R 11% 3 SR AN A RE IR 5K o

BEEREHENGER BHE_Z—NO
FHZ A=+ —HIEFEZHERARETA
WEBERBREER(CZ—=F: REaIRA
WERANEERFEEE) -

MR -E—NE+-A=+—B2ZEmEMH:t
AlESEmNS  RENFETHERR
AR THRAEED S M EMA]#EE
RETE BB ERREZ BT AR E 58
2 B IN50% 88 4 58% o EFIR L Fak T
B—EESH MAEEMAZEERERET
& BERBE B A IR E & 58 5 BN
%% R D36% ° BEIRE EARK TH®—EEH
Do MATAEMAEERRRENE  BE
B E 2 T8 A U B & 58 Bl 2 12% 8 18
H115% o
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The Group’s land use rights represent prepaid operating lease payments

and their net book values are analysed as follows:

In Mainland China held on:
— Leases of between 10 to 50 years

Balance as at 1 January
Amortisation of prepaid operating lease payments
Currency translation differences

Balance as at 31 December

Cost, unlisted shares
Provision for impairment loss

RAEBRERS:
— BHNF10E505F
W—A—RBz &

BHBENEERENRRA
& ER

Rt-A=t—B2Z#&#%

DN S i S )
BB BB

Details of principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 32 to the financial

statements.

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the amount due from a subsidiary
was unsecured, interest-free and had no fixed terms of repayment and

was regarded as equity contribution to the subsidiary.

AEEZTMERERRBENELHEER

B HEREFESNNOT

2014
—F-mE
HK$’000
FER

15,705

2014
—F-0E
HK$°000
FER

16,069

(364)

15,705

Company
FAE

2014
—E-mE
HK$’000
FHERT

165,938
(144,213)

21,725

2013
—T—=F
HK$’000
FHBT

16,069

2013
—E—=F
HK$’000
FH T

16,212
(359)
216

16,069

2013
—E—=%F
HK$’000
FAT

165,938
(138,058)

27,880

T EMBRRZFFAE SN MWK

32 ¢

R-E-—NFER-FT—=F+_A=+—8H"
—HNEARRRAEERR RS - 258
REEE R E S - BRI S T A M

REEE -



The tables below analyse financial instruments by category:

TREZEER S

Loans and
receivables
BERK
W R IE
HK$’°000
FHET
As at 31 December 2014 RZZT—mF+=—A=+—H
Assets as per balance sheet REEABRMIZEE
Trade and other receivables BRI RIEZ ,\55
excluding prepayments Ko EL A JE WK T 22,323
Financial assets at fair value E@ﬁfﬁ?ﬂ\ﬁﬁ?&ﬁﬁ
through profit or loss ZERMEE -
Bank deposits RITIF 7,949
Cash and cash equivalents RekReFHEIER 110,625
140,897

Liabilities as per balance sheet
Trade and other payables

As at 31 December 2013
Assets as per balance sheet

Trade and other receivables excluding
prepayments

Bank deposits
Cash and cash equivalents

REEABRMIIZAME
B 5 M E A A RO

R-—ZE—=F+=-A=+—H
REEBEBERMIZEE

GSEEN R

RITHF K

B2 B 5 N EAMEWRIA

RekREFHEEAR

frem A :

Assets at fair
value through

the profit or loss Total
BASETA

BElR2ZEE @t

HK$°000 HK$°000

TFHET FHET

- 22,323

113,687 113,687

- 7,949

- 110,625

113,687 254,584

Other financial liabilities

at amortised cost

548 6 R A RR
ZHit &R AR
HK$’000

FET

34,767

Loans and receivables
B R B

HK$'000

FAET

20,480
7,830
101,408

129,718
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Liabilities as per balance sheet
Trade and other payables

Assets as per balance sheet
Amount due from a subsidiary
Other receivables excluding prepayments
Cash and cash equivalents

Liabilities as per balance sheet
Other payables

REEABERMIIZBE
B 5 N A MR IR

REEABRMIIZEE
JRE Ui — i Y 88 2 B SROR
B I8 3R IR 2 E At 1B WK OR
e lREeEEEREHA

REEBERMIIZEE
H A & 3RIA

Other financial liabilities at

amortised cost
REBHEKRIIERZ
HhemBaE
HK$'000

FHET

33,729

Loans and receivables

BERRERRIE
2014 2013
—ET-MmEF —E—=fF
HK$°000 HK$’000
TFET TETT
291,076 164,036
520 521
1,148 1172
292,744 165,729

Financial liabilities at

amortised cost
REHFERATRZEMEMERE
2014 2013
—F—WmE —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TFET FET
714 1,549



Raw materials R A}
Work in progress F R
Finished goods e

The cost of inventories recognised as expenses and included in cost
of goods sold amounted to approximately HK$46,701,000 (2013:
HK$58,602,000).

Group

FEHEH
2014
—ET-mE
HK$’000
FERT

Trade receivables B S rWEIE 21,362

Prepayments, deposits and other  TEfTFIE « & &
receivables oy ] 4,078

25,440

The carrying amounts of the trade receivables, deposits and other
receivables approximated to their fair values.

The majority of the Group’s sales to customers were on open account
basis, with credit terms ranging from 30 to 60 days. The ageing of
trade receivables based on invoice date, is as follows:

Within 30 days 30HA
31-60 days 31-60H
61-90 days 61-90H
Over 90 days B 3890H

2014 2013

—g-m#x —z-=¢
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHL T
3,766 4,243
15,977 12,925
5,344 6,995
25,087 24,163

BRBAXRAABERAZEERENE
46,701,000/% 7t (=% — = 4 : 58,602,000/%
JT) e

Company
AAT

2013 2014 2013
ZT—=F —E—-mE —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
TET FERT FET
19,646 - —
4,926 861 1,893
24,572 861 1,893

BHRENGIR - e KA EKIR 2 RE
BERADNAREMRE °

AEBABDHETELP ZRBH ALK
HHETT - FEE BN FI0E60H - B HREYK
BREZAHRZEEROTET:

Group
FEHE
2014 2013
—F-mE —E—=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
TFET F#& T
19,911 15,019
1,451 4111
= 20
= 496
21,362 19,646
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As at 31 December 2014, the trade receivables from the Group’s five
largest customers accounted for 99% (2013: 100%) of the total trade
receivables. The Group’s approach to managing credit risk is disclosed
in Note 3.

The ageing of trade receivables past due but not considered to be
impaired is shown below. These past due receivables relate to a
number of independent customers for whom there is no recent history
of default.

Within 30 days 3087/
31-60 days 31-60H
61-90 days 61-90H
Over 90 days #E3890H

At 31 December 2014, there was no provision for impairment of trade
receivables (2013: Nil).

The other classes within trade and other receivables did not contain
impaired assets.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was the
carrying amount of each class of receivables mentioned above. The
Group did not hold any collateral as security.

The carrying amounts of the trade receivables were denominated in the
following currencies:

Hong Kong dollar BT
Renminbi AR¥E
United States dollar Ep

RZZB-NF+-A=+—0 AEERLKREF
P2 B85 WA B 5 I W IR 2 5E99%
TR -=F:100%) - AEEEEFEER R
277 T RES B B o

EE HME B AR R ERE 2 B 5 B W IR IR ik
T e WEEBRERRESRZ EBLE
P HOE BN M RGRAD 8 o

Group
FEH
2014 2013
—E-mE —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FET
1,451 3,725
- 149
- 146
- 156
1,451 4176

RZZE—WNF+_A=+—H ATEHFES
FEMCGRIBEH RERE (T —=F &) -

BEHREMEYFBERNEBEITAEEE
MEEE
RBEARzESEERRR LR EHERIE
YRR Z BREE - AN E B AEE A
fn EHE AR -

BHEWRBEZERESNATIIESE:

Group

xEE
2014 2013
—E—MNEF —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHERT FAET
3 98
10,172 9,150
11,187 10,398
21,362 19,646



The carrying amounts of deposits and
denominated in the following currencies:

Hong Kong dollar ok
Renminbi AR
United States dollar Ev

Held-for-trading
Listed securities — Hong Kong

other receivables were

Group
FEH

2014
—E-mE
HK$’000
FERT

1,297

1,767

3,064

HIER S
tHES - BB

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are presented within
“operating activities” as part of changes in working capital in the

statement of cash flows (Note 30).

The fair values of all equity securities are based on their current bid

prices in an active market (Note 3).

As of 31 December 2014, the overall effective interest rate of the bank
deposit was 1.52% (2013: 1.35%) per annum. These deposits have an
average maturity of 152 days (2013: 149 days). The carrying amounts
of the bank deposits were denominated in United States dollar.

BaRHEMERRIER Z REEDATIIEE

SIE :

2013

=%

HK$'000
TAET
251
2,266

64

2,581

Company
AAT

2014 2013
—ET—-mE —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FER FET
777 985
777 985
2014 2013
—F-mE —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FH&T
113,687 —

BAnE AR Z2REENEER

BINE -

&)z — 28 (M 5E30) ©

ERBESRERNEEESHE

IBELETRAEF AR BEHAEERFR
RERT IS 2 HBERELE (M FES) -

H*’%

\B’Xiﬂitﬂ 521_(_55* F:1.35

F) WEGFRZFHEHA 1528 (ZF—
BITFERZEEELET

=4 :149H) »

B -
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Cash at bank and in hand
Short-term bank deposits

Group

AEKE
2014
—F—-MmE
HK$’000
TFET

RITRFRES
7 HIR 1717 K

50,560
60,065

110,625

The overall effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits was 1.2%
(2013: 1.1%) per annum and the deposits have an average maturity of

31 days (2013: 23 days).

The Group’'s cash and bank balances of HK$3,595,000 (2013:
HK$2,563,000) are deposited with banks in the PRC. The remittance
of these funds out of the PRC is subject to the exchange control
restrictions imposed by the PRC government.

The carrying amount of the cash and cash equivalents were
denominated in the following currencies:

Hong Kong dollar
Renminbi

United States dollar
Others

Group
xEE

2014

—F—-0mE

HK$’000

FHET
BT 63,806
AR 3,549
ETT 43,142
Hh 128

110,625

Company
AAE

2013 2014 2013
—E—=F —E—-lEF —E =
HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
T FHET FET
33,120 1,148 1,172
68,288 - —
101,408 1,148 1172

HHBRTTERCERERFANEAI2E(Z
T—=F11E) HFHFHEAZIR(ZE
— =4 :23H) -

REBE 2R S RIRTTH #3,595,000/%8 T (=
T — =4 : 2,563,000 T)EFARFE 2
BT o UL EE SEHPEAT D P BT
B2 HMNEESIEFTR ] -

ReMReEEBRBZEEEDATIEE
FIME :

Company
AATF
2013 2014 2013
—E-=F —T-mE —=—=
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FTER FHET
44,221 1,053 1172
2,606 - —
54,432 95 -
149 - —
101,408 1,148 1172



Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal
authority. As of 31 December 2014 and 2013, no deferred income tax
assets and liabilities were offset.

BREFASHRARE

Deferred income tax liabilities

The movement in deferred income tax liabilities during the year is as
follows:

BAEETANTEANEEHHIEE ERE 5
REEFEEE BECHEHRSERRA—BK
WE - RIAISIRIEFMSEREERBEERH -
R-E-—NEER-—T—=F+-F=+—H"
WEKHEEMESHEERAE

2014 2013
—F—-MNmF —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#ET T
8,240 5,959

FAZETEMERABRZSHNT

Net unrealised

Balance as at 1 January 2013
Credited to equity

At 31 December 2013

Balance as at 1 January 2014
Debited to equity
Debited to profit or loss

At 31 December 2014

RZTB—=F—A—Hz#&#H
REEETA

R-ZZE—=F+-"A=+—H
M-E-—MF-A—RZHER
A 25 #1 BR

RIE s RN

R-ZZE—WF+=-A=+—H

gain on
Fair value revaluation
gains of land of trading
and buildings securities Total
EffXS
T RiEFZ BHZKRER
A f B F S @t
HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000
FHET FHET FHET
6,670 — 6,670
(711) - (711)
5,959 - 5,959
5,959 - 5,959
800 - 800
- 1,481 1,481
6,759 1,481 8,240

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss carry-forwards
to the extent that realisation of the related tax benefit through the
future taxable profits is probable. The Group did not recognise deferred
income tax assets of HK$33,297,000 (2013: HK$34,595,000) in respect
of losses amounting to HK$165,507,000 (2013: HK$160,449,000)
that can be carried forward against future taxable income because
their utilisation is not considered probable. Cumulative tax losses
of HK$75,208,000 (2013: HK$64,910,000) can be carried forward
indefinitely while tax losses of HK$90,299,000 (2013: HK$95,539,000)
will expire in five years.

BEMBSHEEESNABZRENEZEA
REEBARERDEFEREG  RAEEH
HEIBHER - AR R BT 8 AIEERT
BHREE  AEBEWERER Y &165,507,000
7670 (—ZF — =4 : 160,449,000 7T) 2 E 18
ZEIEFR5 & E 33,297,000/ T (—E—=
F : 34,595,000/ 7r) + E A 45 05 A LA 85
Hi& ERBU A - 25518 & 1875,208,000
I (T — =4 : 64,911,000/ 7T ) AT E R HA
wEE - A IEE1890,299,000/8 T (— 2 —=
£ 1 95,539,000/ 70) A AF N R H -
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Trade payables
Accruals
Other payables

Group
X5KE
2014
—F—-MmE
HK$’000
FHT
B ERE 14,565
&R 12,835
E b B 5K IE 7,367

34,767

The ageing of the trade payables, based on invoice date, is as follows:

Within 30 days
31-60 days
61-90 days
Over 90 days

30
31-60H
61-90H
H#@90H

Trade payables were denominated in the following currencies:

Hong Kong dollar
Renminbi
United States dollar

BT
AR
X

2013
-
HK$’'000
FAT
16,141
13,649

3,939

33,729

BHREMNFBETIATIEEE

Company
AATF
2014 2013
—F—MmE —T—=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTER FAET
183 1,004
531 545
714 1,549
BEoRNREREZAM RERNOT

Group

FEH
2014 2013
—F—MmEF —T—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FET
7,719 8,067
5,710 4,605
560 1,860
576 1,609
14,565 16,141

Group

FEHE
2014 2013

—F—lE —ET—=

HK$’000 HK$’000
FHR T
317 391
14,056 14,431
192 1,319
14,565 16,141



Other payables and accruals were

denominated in the following

S 814 3B B 3T 8 F T3 BT 51 30

currencies: &:
Group Company
T8 AAT
2014 2013 2014 2013
—T-mE —ET-=F —E—mE —E-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT FHERT FH& T
Hong Kong dollar BT 5,851 2,621 714 1,549
Renminbi AR 14,351 15,067 - —
20,202 17,588 714 1,549

The carrying amounts of trade and other payables approximated to their
fair values due to their short term nature.

BHREMEMNFIBERBRESLE  @wAEK
E{ERQAAERE

2014 2014 2013 2013

—ET—MmE —E—-ME —E-=F ZZT—=F

Ordinary Ordinary

Number of shares of Number of shares of

ordinary HK$0.10 ordinary HK$0.10

shares each shares each

ER%0.10/E T FAR0105 T

LiE R ZEBER AR Z B

BHEE % 15 RnHEE Rz 1

(thousands) HK$’000 (thousands) HK$’000

(1) (F#EXT) (F %) (F#T)

At 1 January ®n—A—H 535,408 53,541 446,174 44,617

Issue of shares BTk - - 89,234 8,924
Issuance of shares pursuant to a BIEHREITRGD

rights issue 267,704 26,770 — —

Share option exercised 171 BB AR 1,588 159 — —

At 31 December R+ZA=+—H 804,700 80,470 535,408 53,541

Y T 9 AR 42 28 52,000,000,0000% (= & —
=4E : 2,000,000,000/%)  EEHKEE A0.10
BL(ZE—=F: FREE010ET) °

The total authorised number of ordinary shares is 2,000,000,000 (2013:
2,000,000,000) shares with a par value of HK$0.10 each (2013: HK$0.10
each).

R-ZTE—=6+—A=+8 AQAGE%HS
BER-ZZE—NF—A+"BHEEEMRK
B A B — BT D 2 AT AR -
RERERKHB0S0BITZERRAEER
% B8 % 17 A~ 2 12267,704,0000% #7 % 15 © %
—EZ-—WOE-_A+=0  BHEHE X2
A B % 17267,704,000x L@ - & HKESE
131,906,000/% 7T (MR AEBER ) ©

On 20 November 2013, the Company proposed to issue not less than
267,704,000 new shares to the qualifying shareholders by way of a
rights issue at a price of HK$0.50 per rights share on the basis of one
new share for every two shares held on the 16 January 2014. On 13
February 2014, pursuant to the rights issue, the Company has issued
267,704,000 ordinary shares, raising a total of HK$131,906,000 net of
related expenses.
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On 24 May 2013, the Board of the Company passes a resolution to
approve the allotment and issued of 89,234,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.10 each for a private placement to not less than six independent
third parties. On 27 May 2013, the Company completed the private
placement and issued an aggregate of 89,234,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.1 each at a price of HK$0.35 each, resulting in net proceeds of
HK$30,372,000.

On 29 August 2012, 18,100,000 share options were granted to key
management personnel of the Group. The exercise price of these
options granted was HK$0.419. Upon completion of a rights issue on
13 February 2014, the number of share options outstanding at this date
was adjusted from 17,100,000 shares to 18,105,884 shares and the
exercise price was adjusted from HK$0.419 per share to HK$0.396 per
share.

During the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, no share options
were granted.

Movements in share options are as follows:

At beginning of year REA

Adjustment due to the completion of rights issue

Exercised [RESRE
Lapsed 2R
At 31 December R+=-—A=+—H

Up to 50% of the share options granted are exercisable from 29 August
2013 to 28 August 2014 (the “First Period”); the remaining 50% of the
share options together with any share options not exercised during the
First Period are exercisable from 29 August 2014 to 28 August 2022.

Options exercised in 2014 resulted in 1,588,235 shares (2013: nil) being
issued at a price of HK$0.396 each. The related share price at the time
of exercise was HK$0.90 per share.

RZZE—=ZFRA-FTMHA ARAEESE
BB —EAEER AR LKEITERO00
5 70,289,234,000/% LB - LAEHAARE
FALORANEBIE= N_T—=%F1
A-+t+H RXAFATHLAERSES WIRE
§20.358 T 2 (B E1TA X FRI0E TLZ
89,234,000/ L@ % - EE TS HNIEB F5E
30,372,000/ 7t °

R-E——FNA-_+NB AEEFEE
12 A BJE R F18,100,0001) B B #E o £ D
REBREZITEEA0MIBIT - RZT—
MEZRA+=H5EAERK%E  RZB®RIT
{8 2 B8 % A 2B 17,100,000 i 17 A & =
18,105,884 % f% {7 + i 175 {8 Rl 1 & A% 0.419
BEILHAREFHK0.39678 T °

BE-Z—NFEER-_Z—=F+-A=+—
BILEE 08X D ERE -

A 5 A AR P 1 2 58 B

EREZFFHNOT

2014 2013
—E—-mE —E—=%F
Number of Number of
shares shares
538 E & 17 8 B
(thousands) (thousands)
(FB%) (FR&)
17,100 18,100

1,006 -
(1,588) -
(3,176) (1,000)
13,342 17,100

H%50% 2 REBERETR=-_Z—=F/\A
—tT+NABEZZE—WNFNAZF+NBTE—
B 1T - MERT50% 5 B4 R T i 88—
BHEARTEZEREIR_ZE—NFN\AZ
+hEZ-_ZE- -/ A+ \BITEFE -

R — PO 17 8 B IR 4 38 B01,588,235/%
B (ZF—=F : ) LB R0.396/8 T 2 B
BT - RITER - BEREAER0.90%E
77: o



Share options outstanding at the end of the year have the following

expiry date:

Expiry date
28 August 2022

Balance as at 1 January 2013
Other comprehensive income

Fair value changes, net of deferred tax
Reserves transferred upon disposal of land

and building, net of tax

Currency translation differences arising
on the translation of the financial
statements of overseas subsidiaries

Total other comprehensive 10ss

Transactions with owners

Issuance of shares

Employee share option scheme
— Value of employee services

— Lapse of share options

Total transactions with owners, recognised

directly in equity

At 31 December 2013

R

—E-_FNAZ

Share
premium

B (E
HK$'000
TET

i
Et2EKA
AREZE NBEERE -
HET i RIEFRERREE -
MBHRE -
BEBNHBLARARERE
EECERESR

T-ZF—-A-Hz&H% 84,387

Atz ABRAR -

BEBNETIRS
BIIRG 21,448
EEBRENE
- EERKEE -
- BREXH -

HBEBEANETZIRSBE
BERERERER 21,448

RZE—=F+ZA=1—H 105,835

CMARITEEREZBIBANT

Number of share options

RER
+/\H
Group
r&E
Fixed
Exchange assets
translation  revaluation
reserve reserve
ElE&E
EHGEE ENRE
HK$'000 HK$'000
T FERT
(30,804 19,796
— 2,146
- (4,065)
(345) —
(345) (1,919)
(31,149 17,877

(thousands)

% 15 8 B (F %)
2014

—T—-lmE =
13,342

Share-

Merger based

reserve payment

(Note i) reserve

IR 5

aftEE ERZER

k) &

HK$'000 HK$'000

T TAR

(200) 748

- 1,723

- (90)

- 1,633

(200) 2,381

17,100

Total

st
HK$'000
TRT

73,927

2,146

(4,065)

(345)

(2,264)

21,448

1,723
(90)

23,081

94,744
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Group

F%H
Fixed Share-
Exchange assets Merger based
Share translation revaluation reserve  payment
premium reserve reserve (Note i) reserve Total

Uik 3
BE&E &t BR2HR
RiriE ExfEE EfiEe (WED & wat

HK$000  HK$’000 HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000 HK$’000
FTERT FTERT FERT FTERT TET TE=R

Balance as at 1 January 2014 WoZ-mE—F-HA2&% | 105835  (31,149) 17,877 (200) 2,381 94,744
Other comprehensive income Hip2EKA
Fair value changes, net of deferred tax ~ AR EEE - MHELFHIE - - 2,401 - - 2,401
Currency translation differences arising BEBIINNBAR T BRE
on the translation of the financial EEZERER
statements of overseas subsidiaries - (21) - - - (21)
Total other comprehensive income Hthz2 AR ARE - (21) 2,401 - - 2,380
Transactions with owners BEBNETLIRS
Issuance of shares pursuant to a rights 1R 5 # ik % 17 i 7
issue 105,136 - - - - 105,136
Employee share option scheme EEBRENE
— Value of employee services - EERBEE - - - - 473 473
— Exercise of share options — TRk 722 - - - (252) 470
— Lapse of share options — BRERN - - - - (483) (483)

Total transactions with owners, recognised EHEBA#TZ X 5%

directly in equity ERRERER 105,858 - - - (262) 105,596
At 31 December 2014 RZE—mE+=A=F—H 211,693 (31,170) 20,278 (200) 2,119 202,720
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At 1 January 2013

Issue of shares

Employee share option scheme
— Value of employee services
— Lapse of share options

At 31 December 2013

At 1 January 2014

Rights Issue

Employee share option scheme
— Value of employee services
— Exercise of share options
— Lapse of share options

At 31 December 2014

R_Z—=F—H—H
BTG
REBRETE
— EERBEE
— BRER

R_ZE—MFE—HA—H
#H AR
REBRETE

— EERBEE

— 1T R

— BERER

RZZE—MF+ZA=+—H

Company
eI
Contributed Share-based

Notes:

()  The merger reserve of the Group represents the difference between
the nominal value of the shares of a subsidiary acquired and
the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange
therefor.

(i) The contributed surplus of the Company represents the difference
between the consolidated shareholders’ funds of a subsidiary
acquired and the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued
in exchange therefor.

Share surplus payment
premium (Note ii) reserve Total

L35

HANEE ERZGR
% 153 itk {8 (Bt &Eii) & #at
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000  HK$'000
FET FHET FET FET
84,387 147,694 748 232,829
21,448 — — 21,448
— — 1,723 1,723
- - (90) (90)
105,835 147,694 2,381 255,910
105,835 147,694 2,381 255,910
105,136 - - 105,136
- - 473 473
722 - (252) 470
- - (483) (483)
211,693 147,694 2,119 361,506

B 5T

() AEBEZAGREIEMBEA-BIE
NEA D 2 E B B AR E] B M &
TR zEEZHE -

(i) ARBZBABBRIIEMBAZMNB R
AlzFERRESEARTRBIER M
BT ZEEZERE -
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Reconciliation of loss before income tax to net cash used in operations

is as follows:

Loss before income tax

Depreciation of properties, plant and equipment

(Gain)/loss on disposal of properties, plant and
equipment

Amortisation of land use rights

Share-based compensation

Finance income

Changes in working capital:
Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Trade and other payables

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Net cash used in operations

In the statement of cash flows, proceeds from sale of properties, plant

and equipment comprise:

Net book amount (Note 15)

Gain/(loss) on disposal of properties, plant and
equipment

Proceeds from disposal of properties, plant and

equipment

AR :
2014
—E—ME
HK$°000
FHETT
B FTS R AT 18 (13,243)
ME- - BMERKETE 4,711
LENE BEREEZ
),/ B8 (182)
o Hb {5 PR A 364
VAR 17 7 B 1 2 R M 473
BEWRA (991)
(8,868)
BEESHT
& (924)
B 5 & H ek 5RIE (868)
B 5 K& H th & 3008 1,038
BEAnBEFAEBRRZEREE (113,687)
KEFAZIRE FE (123,309)
RBEREERRN HEME -
15
2014
—F—ME
HK$°000
FHETT
BREF A (M 3E15) 62
PEDE BEEREEZ
W (E518) 182
HEWE  MERZBMESRE
244

BAEHAIBREEEEMAZReFE Y

—E-=4F
HK$’000
FET

(30,060)
4,642

19
359
1,723
(753)

(24,070)
(1,766)

(5,250)
6,279

(24,807)

B 55 R R 1

2013
—ET—=%F
HK$’000
FH T
114

(19
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The Group had future aggregate minimum lease payments for buildings
under non-cancellable operating leases as follows:

Not later than one year

Later than one year and not later than five years

—FR
—FREMNEREF

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Company had no commitment

under operating leases.

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2014:

Company name

A8 &7

Shares held directly:
EERERG:

Topwell Group
Development Ltd.

Shares held indirectly:
HESAERY:

Carry Wealth Limited

AR AF

Dragon Insight Investments
Limited

EHLIREBRAA

Hillwealth International

Limited
A B EAR AR

Place of
incorporation/
operation

EEM AL, AR B

British Virgin Islands

RBREUES

Hong Kong

)

Hong Kong

)

Hong Kong

B8

Principal activities

ERER

Investment holding

RERR

Provision of management
services

e E I8 R

Securities trading
BHERD
Garment trading and

marketing

KK E 5 K5 E

AEERBEIUTHHELEHEMAR KRR
BFXMNz&EBEEFELBENAT:

2014 2013
—E—ME —ET—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
1,387 1,055

694 -

2,081 1,055

A

—E-NER-E—=F+_A=+—§H"
SR A) A 4 A T B RE o

KRR ZE—NFF+_A=+—HZEZE
MEBARmT:

Particulars of issued
share capital

ERTRFAH

Percentage of
interest held

FifEmE S

1,000 ordinary shares of 100

US$1 each
1,000 F R EEI1E T2
L3 AR

4,000,000 ordinary shares 100

of HK$1 each
4,000,0000% & f%

HEISTZE @R
1 ordinary share of HK$1 100
each

1SR EEE T 2 & @

1 ordinary share of HK$1 100

each
1RSREENS T2 L@

111



112

Place of
incorporation/

Company name operation

AT EHE BB SRR EEER

Mass Wealth Investments Hong Kong Investment holding
Limited

HMEREEBR AR HE #E R

BLEERXERAR People’s Republic

of China products
(Heshan Carry Wealth R A R AR HESERE

Garment Limited)

Principal activities

Manufacture of knit

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, 404,944,690 shares and
512,971,000 shares (2014: 50.32%; 2013: 63.87%) of the Company
were held by Dragon Peace Limited, which is ultimately owned by
Mr Li Haifeng, a director of the Company. The directors consider
Dragon Peace Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands, to be the Company’s ultimate holding company.

Pursuant to the underwriting agreement dated 20 November 2013
entered into between the Company and Dragon Peace Limited,
Dragon Peace Limited had undertaken to take up 276,254,000
new shares under the rights issue to the fullest extent assuming
all outstanding share options were exercised and no qualifying
shareholders had taken any rights shares. Upon the completion
of the rights issue on 13 February 2014, Dragon Peace Limited
has taken up 168,277,690 new shares for HK$83,890,000, net of
commission expense of HK$249,000.

Salaries and other short-term employee benefits %7 Bil &2 £ 1th 52 £ (& 8 43 7|

Contributions to the MPF Scheme HIE SR EI R

Particulars of issued
share capital

Percentage of
interest held

EEITRAEH RS ERE

1 ordinary share of HK$1 100
each

1RSREENS T2 L@

US$12,600,000 100

12,600,000 7T

RZE—NFER-ZZT—=F+=ZA=
+ — B & A 7]404,944,6908% B {9
}%512,971,0000% % 7 (= & — 1 -
50.32%: — T — = 4 :63.87%) H
Dragon Peace Limited##7%4 @ ARG E
EEMATERREBZAR - 2R
7% » Dragon Peace Limited (P B & 2
HEFMKRIZBERRARAXRATZ

BREERRA]

18 #% "X B £2 Dragon Peace Limited 7]
VHBAZZ—=F+—A=Z+tHZE
i BREITEME N RITEER
T R A A B A% B A (T (A AR AR
% » Dragon Peace Limited & 7 7 7 8
A R 4 K & & K 85 2. 276,254,000
D - R—_E—MF-F+=H
H A% ST A% » Dragon Peace Limited A
83,890,000 7t (1 Bk 1A % # 32249,000
5 7T) A B 168,277,690 X $T AL ) ©

2014 2013
—g-m#x —z-=f
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHT T
6,110 7,632

42 51

6,152 7,683



EHREE AWM
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CARRY WEALTH HOLDINGS LIMITED

EEERARAT

2908, 29th Floor, Enterprise Square Three, 39 Wang Chiu Road, Kowloon Bay, Hong Kong
BEANEERREDEES3H29182908F

Tel E7%:(852) 23108180  Fax fZE : (852) 2310 8797

Website #8931 : www.carrywealth.com
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